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We are dedicated to adding value for clients,
employees, shareholders and the community
through the delivery of total quality financial
services.
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We aim to be a global player in the financial
services industry, and a leader in the Greater
China region.To achieve this, we will

— always place the interests of our clients first;

— maintain the trust of our clients through our
integrity, quality and professionalism;

— provide innovative solutions, using advanced
technology, without losing sight of our
traditional values; and

— develop a culture which fosters innovation,
knowledge, communication and continuous
improvement.



H &

Contents

BB BADK - 8RB
ARFUERENEEES  &-
o HREH - REREFPBK
BRRTBOEBEERKE  ZRHE
EE #-ERBTEPNEERE

SERET —ZEBFSHOER
BERRCBETRIE - TeERR
TE - BORBIE - MHE—FOS8E
— R AREM (L AV EI PR Bl AR5
o

The sea admits hundreds of
rivers for its capacity to hold.
Haitong International has earned
significant trust and recognition
from its clients and received
numerous accolades, built on its
strict adherence to the client-first
principle, collective wisdom and
continuous innovation, striving to
help global clients achieve wealth
creation from enormous streams
of investment opportunities
abound.

The Group has amalgamated

a tremendously talented team
with high degree of adaptability,
competence and efficiency.
Despite global economic
challenges, we are capable

of weathering through the
turbulent storms in the endless
sea of wealth opportunities.
Ultimately, we will be successful
to pursue our ambitious goal

of spearheading towards

the international arena and
establishing a leading presence in
the global financial market.
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Announcement of the audited final results
13 March 2012

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting

Book close dates

25 April to 27 April 2012 (both dates inclusive)
Latest time to lodge transfers

4:30 p.m. on 24 April 2012

Record date

27 April 2012

Annual General Meeting

27 April 2012

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend

Book close dates

4 May to 8 May 2012 (both dates inclusive)
Latest time to lodge transfers

4:30 p.m. on 3 May 2012

Record date

8 May 2012

Final dividend payment date

on or about 29 May 2012

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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Church Street, Hamilton HM 11
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General Information

Executive Directors
LI Jianguo
LIN Yong

Deputy Chairman

LEE YiuWing, William  Joint Managing Director

CHAN Chi On, Derek
POON Mo Yiu, Patrick
HUI Yee, Wilson

Non-executive Directors
JI'Yuguang

WU Bin

CHEN Chungian

Hiroki MIYAZATO
CHENG Chi Ming, Brian

Chairman

Independent Non-executive Directors
MAN Mo Leung

TSUI Hing Chuen, William

LAU Wai Piu, Bill

Company Secretary
LITung Wing, Mike

Internal Auditor
LAU Chi Keung, Sammy

Place of Incorporation
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Registered Office
Clarendon House

Church Street, Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Principal Place of Business
25th Floor, New World Tower
16-18 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Website

Homepage: www.htisec.com

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
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Conyers Dill & Pearman

FERDBFERZE

HSBC Securities Services (Bermuda) Limited
6 Front Street, Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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Corporate Information

External Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Legal Adviser in Hong Kong
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo

Legal Adviser on Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Principal Share Registrars and Transfer Office
HSBC Securities Services (Bermuda) Limited

6 Front Street, Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrars and Transfer Office
Tricor Investor Services Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
CITIC Bank International Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

Wing Hang Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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Board Committees

Audit Committee
JI'Yuguang

MAN Mo Leung

TSUI Hing Chuen, William
LAU Wai Piu, Bill

Credit Committee

LIN Yong

LEE Yiu Wing, William
POON Mo Yiu, Patrick

HUI Yee, Wilson

ZHANG Xinjun, Jeff

SUN Tong, Tony

WU Kwok Leung, Edmond
LO Wai Ho, Kendy

CHAN Wai Man, Cilla

Executive Committee
LIN Yong

LEE Yiu Wing, William
CHAN Chi On, Derek
POON Mo Yiu, Patrick

HUI Yee, Wilson

ZHANG Xinjun, Jeff

SUN Jianfeng

SUN Tong, Tony

WU Kwok Leung, Edmond
LO Wai Ho, Kendy

Remuneration Committee
JI'Yuguang

CHENG Chi Ming, Brian

MAN Mo Leung

TSUI Hing Chuen, William

LAU Wai Piu, Bill

Strategic Development Committee
JI'Yuguang

LI Jianguo

LIN Yong

LEE Yiu Wing, William

CHENG Chi Ming, Brian
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Corporate Information

Sub-committees

Investment Committee
LIN Yong

LEE Yiu Wing, William
POON Mo Yiu, Patrick
ZHANG Xinjun, Jeff

LO Wai Ho, Kendy

IT Steering Committee
LEE Yiu Wing, William

POON Mo Yiu, Patrick
ZHANG Xinjun, Jeff

WU Kwok Leung, Edmond
LO Wai Ho, Kendy

CHAN Kar Kui, Carl

LO Yam Pui, Eric

YANG Kwok Cheung, Marcus

Cost Management Committee
POON Mo Yiu, Patrick

ZHANG Xinjun, Jeff

LO Wai Ho, Kendy

WONG Mei Lin, April Fiona

CHAN Kar Kui, Carl

HUI Chor Ho, Mixgo

HUNG Chi Shuen, David

TSANG Lan Fa, Jennifer

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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12A31H 12A31H SEHEIL
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Year 18 months Percentage
ended ended change
31 December 31 December Increase/
201 2010 (Decrease)
B2EE, HE For the year end/period end
WA (FETT) Revenue (HK$'000) 959,157 1,459,935 (34)
A (F#ET) Net Profit (HK$'000) 153,204 345,795 (56)
EERHE At the year end/period end
RRES (T787T) Shareholders’ Funds (HK$'000) 3,054,588 2,170,580 41
(KfaE)
(Note)
WwEE (T7%&T) Total Assets (HK$'000) 10,962,126 11,412,151 (4)
BEITIRDEE Number of Shares in Issue 915,342,706 715,032,706 28
EST Per share
SRREARREF (B Basic Earnings Per Share
(HK Cents) 19.37 48.80 (60)
FREESERF GBI Diluted Earnings Per Share
(HK Cents) 19.35 48.68 (60)
BB (B Dividend Per Share (HK Cents) 8 24 (67)
BREEFE (BT) NAV Per Share (HK$) 3.34 3.04 10
[ Share Price
—= (GBx) - High (HK$) 6.04 7.39 (18)
— & (BIT) - Low (HK$) 1.90 2.09 (9)
B EL 2R Financial ratios
EABER Gearing Ratio
—[EEREEE - Borrowing to Total Assets 0.15 0.26 (42)
— fEEREEEFE — Borrowing to NAV 0.55 1.37 (60)
BEEERR (%) Return on Total Assets (%) 1.40 3.03 (54)
ERESDR (%) Return on Shareholders’ Fund (%) 5.02 15.93 (68)
(KiaE)
(Note)
Kiat - RERE2EE#20119F8H ENERRE 850,000,000/ 7T -

Note:

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011

Shareholders’ fund includes the capitalisation of HK$850,000,000 shareholder loan in August 2011.
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Corporate Structure

TERBELT
Major Subsidiaries

BERMEER
Asset and Wealth
Management

XA

Corporate Finance

J

BREEERE
(B#) BRAR
HaiTong Asset

Management (HK) Ltdj

BEEREAERAR
Haitong International
Capital Ltd.

BREFEEERERAT
Haitong International
Asset Management Ltd.

BRERERERLR
Haitong International
Consultants Ltd.

BRERERERERAE
Haitong International
Immigration
Consultants Ltd.

BREFRELEERAT
Haitong International
Investment

Managers Ltd.

BEERAEENERAF

Haitong International

Wealth Management Ltd.

AV

Financial Services

BEEREXERARA
Haitong International
Bullion Ltd.

BERERSBERAF
Haitong International
Finance Co. Ltd.

BEERHEERAR
Haitong International
Futures Ltd.

BREFRERBERAT
Haitong International
Investment Services Ltd.

BEERET
BERBAERAE
Haitong International
On-line Services Ltd.

BEERHEERAR
Haitong International
Research Ltd.

BEERESERLE
Haitong International
Securities Co. Ltd.

REAERAE
Haitong International
Securities Nominees Ltd.

WiEt - KB s — B E A - RBETrEENE LA -

Note: This chart is a simplified corporate structure chart, with only major subsidiaries being shown.

EERZABERYE
Management and
Consultancy Services

KR EMBIRE
Strategic and Other
Investments

J

BEERENAS
BRAR
Haitong International
Information Systems Ltd)

BREMRK
GRIN) BRDE
J

BREREERRBERAT
Haitong International
Management Services
Co. Ltd.

BEARRERH
GRIN) BRDH

BERERLTF
Prosper Ideal Ltd.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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([ BB R ])
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(TAXf (ZR)])
BAARCERBAR ([AABLE]) 2) = 64,213,732 = 64,213,732 7.02
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HAITONG INTERNATIONAL
SECURITIES GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Haitong
International Securities Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 114 to 247,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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BYZEHMBES
Independent Auditor’s Report

B R oK B

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 March 2012

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

HZ2011F12H31HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BZE20115 HZE2010F
12A31H 12A31H
IEFE 11818 A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
B 5 F&ET FTAT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue B 959,157 1,459,935
HAKA Other income 5 56,589 55,018
1,015,746 1,514,953
EERAIME - Employee benefits costs:
HFe Ml - EAK Salaries and allowances,
RIRSET BB bonuses and pension scheme
contributions 6 (339,265) (439,213)
REFEHE Commission to accounts
executives 6 (141,587) (252,410)
e Depreciation 13 (43,558) (49,370)
HEMEems Other operating expenses (278,152) (339,962)
BT ENBABEREN Gain on re-measurement of
BE/ BEZK=E assets/liabilities classified
as held for sale - 2,023
(802,562) (1,078,932)
B 7 K R Finance costs 6 (34,126) | (39,194)
R RF Operating profit 179,058 396,827
FE (GBS N B i A Share of profit of an associate - 1,718
RREBE AR R Profit before taxation 6 179,058 398,545
TIER Taxation expenses 9 (25,973) (53,386)
FRHRER Profit for the year/period 153,085 345,159

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

B 22011F12H31HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

BZ2011E HZE2010F
12A31H 12H31H
IEFE 11818 A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
(=2 F&T TAT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AL Attributable to:
VNG ZNEZE PN Equity holders of the Company 10 153,204 345,795
JEFE I MR 2 Non-controlling interests (119) (636)
153,085 345,159
KA Dividends 1
F— KB HIR B First interim dividend - 70,896
FEZRHPHRE Second interim dividend - 42,538
HREARR B Interim dividend 54,920 _
R R HIRR B Proposed final dividend 18,307 57,203
73,227 170,637
VNN @i =F =N Earnings per share attributable to
sl equity holders of the Company 12
EHAR Basic 19.377% 1l 48.807%511L
19.37 cents 48.80 cents
B Diluted 19.353%& 1l 48.687 11l
19.35 cents 48.68 cents
B0 EoATE M ARG AU BHREZHK  The notes on pages 126 to 247 form an integral part of this
2D o consolidated financial statements.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B 22011F12H31HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

116

BZ2011F HZE20109F
12A31H 12H31H
LFE LE18f@ A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
TExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRHREF Profit for the year/period 153,085 345,159
mEJHEERE Disposal of available-for-sale investments (8,406) =
AIRHEREZ AT E Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
o) investments (2,792) 5,731
FR/HREMEEKE Other comprehensive income for
the year/period (11,198) 5,731
FRHREERESARE Total comprehensive income for
the year/period 141,887 350,890
AT AT - Attributable to:
ViN/NET 7S = F N Equity holders of the Company 142,006 351,526
FEPE MR A Non-controlling interests (119) (636)
141,887 350,890

F1262F 2478 2 sk BARERE B 7583k 2 #ARK The notes on pages 126 to 247 form an integral part of this
Bhin e consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

H20114F12H31H
As at 31 December 2011

2011%12H31H
31 December

201012 A31H
31 December

2011 2010
B 5T FTET FAT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
EE&E Fixed assets 13 178,171 151,420
EES Goodwill 14 9,854 9,854
Hih\EmEEE Other intangible assets 15 6,609 6,609
HihEE Other assets 16 14,811 43,513
BT A E Deferred tax assets 28 2,714 2,343
AHEKRE Available-for-sale investments 18 11,250 32,018
FEERIEBEE Held-to-maturity investments 19 142,695 =
H b fE U BRIE Other receivables 20 51,807 =
417,911 245,757
REEE Current assets
HBTEEZER Advances to customers 21 3,438,293 4,375,589
JE W BR 5K Accounts receivable 22 946,980 966,946
FENHIE - Rk Prepayments, deposits and
H i fe Ye BR1E other receivables 20 119,913 133,600
FESFIIE Tax prepaid 28,041 21,725
BAFEFTABREZ Financial investments at fair value
BIEE through profit or loss 23 17,724 92,251
REFFEZRE Cash held on behalf of customers 24 4,992,026 5,158,603
W& RRITETT Cash and bank balances 1,001,238 417,680
......10544,215 = 11,166,394
EEAE Total assets 10,962,126 11,412,151
REREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AR FRAEFE A Equity attributable to equity
FE{L R #E holders of the Company
BEITIRAR Issued capital 29 (91,534) (71,503)
B Reserves 31 (2,944,747) (2,041,874)
R AR HARE B Proposed final dividend 11 (18,307) (57.203)
(3,054,588) (2,170,580)
FEEHI M S Non-controlling interests (6,639) (6,758)
RIELE Total equity (3,061,227) (2,177,338)

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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mEEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

H20114F12H31H
As at 31 December 2011

2011%12H31H
31 December

201012 H31H
31 December

2011 2010
B 5 F&T TET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
aE Liabilities
FREEE Non-current liabilities
REFIAEE Deferred tax liabilities 28 (24,726) (19,832)
(24,726) (19,832)
REBEE Current liabilities
FEfTBR R Accounts payable 25 (6,044,889) (6,052,493)
FET IR Tax payable (34,414) (51,429)
H b fE S BR 7R & FE =T 308 Other payables and accruals 26 (102,345) (136,792)
BERRHEMEE Loans and other borrowings 27 (1,694,525) (2,974,267)
(7,876,173) (9,214,981)
b vt Total liabilites (7900,899) | (9,234,813)
RERSERE Total equity and liabilities (10,962,126) (11,412,151)
REEEZRE Net current assets 2,668,042 1,951,413
EEHUERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 3,085,953 2,197.170
MO R
LIN Yong LEE Yiu Wing, William
E EFE
Director Director
F126EF2478 2 Wik ARG W Bz 2 K The notes on pages 126 to 247 form an integral part of this
15 o consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

H20114F12H31H
As at 31 December 2011

2011%12H31H
31 December

2010912 A31H
31 December

2011 2010
= F&ET FET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 13 17,796 15,120
RB AR ZIEE Investment in subsidiaries 17 105,377 105,377
123,173 120,497
REBEE Current assets
R )= NCIE L] Amount due from subsidiaries 17 4,024,331 3,176,448
FERRE - &k Prepayments, deposits and
H b fE W AR I8 other receivables 20 8,527 5,994
RWERBTER Cash and bank balances 15,060 8,969
,,,,,,,,, 4,047,918 3.191.41
EERE Total assets 4,171,091 3,311,908
REREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AERARBREEFEA Equity attributable to equity
FEAL IR RE holders of the Company
=B (TR AN Issued capital 29 (91,534) (71,503)
B Reserves 31 (1,871,056) (991,459)
R R HARR B Proposed final dividend 1 (18,307) (567.203)
RiEAEE Total equity (1,980,897) (1,120,165)

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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Balance Sheet
H20114F12H31H

As at 31 December 2011

120

2011%12H31H 2010%12A31H

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Mo FExT FET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEE Current liabilities
FEfHB B A TR IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 17 (1,468,719) (756,097)
FESFLTE Tax payable (11,136) (6,590)
H{th B~ BR BN M PR 5T RR IR Other payables and accruals 26 (13,814) (39,681)
ERREMEE Loans and other borrowings 27  (696525)  (1,389,375)
BERE Total liabilites | (2,190,194) | (2,191,743)
RERBEHATE Total equity and liabilities (4,171,091) (3,311,908)
REEEZRHE Net current assets 1,857,724 999,668
EEAERARBAER Total assets less current liabilities 1,980,897 1,120,165
MOE R
LIN Yong LEE Yiu Wing, William
EF BF
Director Director

F1262 F2478 7 Wit BANG A B fE R 2 42K The notes on pages 126 to 247 form an integral part of this
&t o consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B 22011F12H31HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

RDARBEEARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Bi#ne
LG ke BRE Bx RE Bs/ FiERHE
B& AEE R RERE AARR  BARR  EMER  ERRR  JBRE  RER ait BE  RESE
Share Share Capital Investment Proposed Non-
Issued  premium option redemption  Contributed Capital ~revaluation ~ Exchange  cash/scrip  Retained controlling
capital  account' reserve’ reserve’  surplus’ reserve’ reserve’  reserve'  dividend profits’ Total interests Total equity
Thn Thn ThR TR TR TR TR Thn Thn Thn Thn ThR TR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
(H30) (W31  (W&E31)
(note 30) (note31)  (note 31)
RAONEIA1R At 1 January 2011 71503 947412 431 5,102 2 45,501 17851 (30) 57203 1,001,586 2,170,580 6,758 2177338
fidihesil Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 153,204 153,204 (119) 153,085
EREMRERE  Other comprehensive income
for the year
HETHHERE  Disposal of available-forsale
investments - - - - - - 8,406) - - - (8,406) - (8,406)
AftnEREY Changes in fai value of
AFEED available-forsale investments - - - - - - (2,792) - - - (2792) - (2792)
SENEEE Total comprehensive income - - - - - - (11,198) - - 153,204 142,006 (1M9) 141,887
BIHRA B3 Issue of new shares
BRk-ME29  -loan capitalisation - note 29 20000 826225 - - - - - - - - 846225 - 846225
SRN0ERHRE 2010 final dividend declared and
RARERH setfled in cash - - - - - - - - (5T203) - (57.203) - (5120)
SRONERBRE 2011 interim dividend declared and
RARERH setfled in cash - - - - - - - - - (549200 (54920) - (54920
AFEEZHERE  New share options granted to
~ 30 employes - note 30 - - 6,396 - - - - - - - 6,39 - 6,396
LTHRR - BRE  Issue of new shares
B i) - share option scheme - note 30 3 1,651 (178) - - - - - - - 1504 - 1504
DR IERE Share options lapsed - 6,306 (6,308) - - - - - - - - - -
ERONERES  Proposed 2011 final ividend
~ i -note 11 - - - - - - - - 18,307 18,307 - - -
RO0NE128318 At31 December 201 954 1B 2428 5,102 PANY X 6,653 (30) 18307 1081563  3,054568 6639 3061227
g hERBEREEEIAGEEERBERZ L These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

VAN
= a

1+ 1652,944,747,0007% 7T (201012 A318 -
2,041,874,000/87T) ©

HK$2,944,747000 (31 December 2010: HK$2,041,874,000) in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B 22011F12H31HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

122

ARTRAREAES
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B3he

B R Bl R RE ke/ SN
k& EER Bk EERE AARR  EAEE  EGERE  ENBR  URRE  REEN aif s REgE

Share Share Capital Investment Proposed Non-
Issued ~ premium option  redemption ~ Contributed Capital  revaluation ~ Exchange  cash/scrip  Retained controlling
capital account reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve dividend profits Total interests ~ Total equity

Ten  TAr  TEr TR TR TEm  TEr T TEr  TRn  TAm  TEm  TER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS00D  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSOOD  HKSO000  HKSO00

(F3t30) (k) (H31)
note 30) (note 31) (note 31)
200957518 At 1 July 2009 70,645 894,677 14,484 5,102 il 45,501 12,120 (301 56,516 826428 1,925,464 539 1930858
BREH Profitfor the period = = = = - - - - - U5TH 3579 (636) 345,159
HREMRERE  Other comprehensive income
for the period

AfHEREY Changes in fai value of

ATEED avallable-forsale investments = = = = = = 5,731 = = = 5731 = 5,731
2ENEEE Total comprehensive income - - - - - - 5731 - - 35795 351,506 (636) 350890
SRBIAHEAZ  Incorporation of anew subsiclary - - - - - S - - _ _ - 2000 2000
ERN09ERERS 2009 final dividend declared and

RIBARBEER  setledin shares and cash 124 5,599 - - - - . - (5650 - 0% - E)
SIR00FEIIR 2010 first and second interim dividend

FORRHREE  declared and settled in shares

WRARESRA  andcash B0 34243 - - - = = = S (34 (78831 - (R
BFEEZHERE  New share options granted to

i) employees - note 30 = - 12,791 - - - - - o o 12,791 5 12,791
BATHRE ~ERE  lssue of new shares

38 - 30 - share option scheme - note 30 1 11,397 (1,269) - = = = = - - 1023 - 1023
B ERE Share options lapsed o 1616 [1,616) = o = = - - - - - -
BIR20I0ERSHRE  Proposed 2010 final dividend

K -note 11 = = = = - - - - 57203 67203) - - -
RII0EI2B31A  At31 December 2010 NHS WM MI 50 a w1 B0 SN 006 210880 678 2173%

F126E 2478 2 MFE RANGRE B 53R IR 2 4K The notes on pages 126 to 247 form an integral part of this
B o consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZ2011F12H31HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE20115E
128318
IEFEE

For the

HZE20105F
12 A31H
1E181E A

For the

year ended 18 months ended

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Mo FET AT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
K F B & ) Profit before taxation 179,058 398,545
LYER T HIFZ Adjustments for:
R/ Gain on disposal of
W as an associate - (4,843)
JE(L B & N B 2 @ Al Share of profit of an associate - (1,718)
B WA Interest income 5 (360,607) (326,754)
B 745 AR AN Finance costs 6 34,126 39,194
ERE R E Dividend income from listed
WA investments 5 (2,620) (2,564)
HEBTEEEY Loss on disposal of fixed
&5 18 assets 6 38 452
e Depreciation 13 43,558 49,370
HEHREEERE 2 Gain on disposal of available-
WS - FEEE for-sale investments, net 5 (8,406) (11,267)
ENTTEN B AERHE Gain on re-measurement of
FEBE AE assets/liabilities classified
2 W= as held for sale - (2,023)
VARR AN 3+ 2 BE B e Equity-settled share option
B expense 6 6,396 12,791
HEREFEEE Gain on disposal of assets/
/S BEZRE liabilities classified
as held for sale 5 - (2,950)
wIEREZEIRL S Decrease/(increase) in advances to
(&) customers 937,296 (2,648,921)
& Y BR B > Decrease in accounts receivable 22,751 1,799,560
JENFIE - Ee REAM Decrease/(increase) in
FEUERIB R prepayments, deposits and
(3%hn) other receivables 17,286 (73,820)
BAVER ABRZ Decrease/(increase) in financial
BBEIRERD investments at fair value
(3gm) through profit or loss 74,527 (69,623)
REEEEZHES R Decrease/(increase) in cash held
(3 n) on behalf of customers 166,577 (1,496,717)
FERTBRZR CRid),/ N (Decrease)/increase in accounts
payable (7,604) 1,356,047
Hfth fETBR X R FE T 7R TE (Decrease)/increase in other
Cri ),/ 10 payables and accruals (35,183) 81,006
ERNMEMEE (Decrease)/increase in loans and
() 18 other borrowings (excluding
(T"BFERITES) bank overdraft) (415,850) 807,875
B U F 2 Interest received 352,990 308,288
2 B 75 Ak AN Finance costs paid (33,851) (39,194)
AR Tax paid (44,781) (219)
Bl EMEEZRE Dividends received from listed
investments 2,620 2,564
REXBCESRANFE Net cash inflow from operating
activities 928,321 175,079
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HZ2011F12H31HIFFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE20115 EHZE2010F
12A31H 12A31H
IEFE 11818 A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
P 5 FHExT FAET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBECESRANFE Net cash inflow from operating
activities 928,321 175,079
RETEBZRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
BEETEE Purchases of items of
fixed assets 13 (70,454) (80,228)
& B E B EFTS I8 Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets 107 51
U B BT B A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries - (369)
REMBREE 2 IRE Investment in other intangible
assets 15 - (2,000)
HuEEmRLD /(3Em) Decrease/(increase) in other
assets 28,702 (36,488)
HEAHEERE S Proceeds from disposal of
FrS 3R available-for-sale investments 18 17,976 18,054
REFARIPZIRE Investment in held-to-maturity
investments 19 (142,481) -
WEIELTEBFES Investment in unlisted debt
securities 20 (51,807) -
PERBEGEEE AE& Proceeds from disposal of
Z TS RIA assets/liabilities classified
as held for sale - 59,157
HEB 2 QR 2 TSR Proceeds from disposal of
an associate 5 - 15,680
"B EFESH 2 EWAE Interest received from
investment in debt securities 1,019 -
RETEH RS Net cash outflow from
T FEE investing activities (216,938) (26,143)
RMETECRERE Cash flows from financing
activities
BRI 2 TS 508 Proceeds from issue of shares
(BIEBETEEIRE) (including shares options
exercised) 30 1,504 10,223
EATIR D EZITRAR Share issuing costs paid 29 (3,314) =
FEPEI MR 2 2 K Contribution from non-controlling
interests - 2,000
RHERE 2 % B Dividends paid to shareholders (112,123) (129,424)
REEH 2 REeRHFE Net cash outflow from
financing activities (113,933) (117,201)
HeMReEEERZ Net increase in cash and
EHNFER cash equivalents 597,450 31,735
FH /BB ER Cash and cash equivalents
ReEEIER at beginning of year/period 403,788 372,053
FRPRZBEER Cash and cash equivalents
ReEMHEIER at end of year/period 1,001,238 403,788
HeRREEEEEER Analysis of balances of cash and
25 cash equivalents
WL RIR1TET Cash and bank balances 1,001,238 417,680
RITEX Bank overdrafts - (13,892)
1,001,238 403,788
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GANE I BMERAEEAFMBEER
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BB

SGERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B 2201112531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Non-cash transaction

On 23 June 2011, the Group entered into a loan capitalisation
agreement with Haitong International Holdings Limited, the
immediate holding company of the Company, which Haitong
International Holdings Limited subscribed 200,000,000 shares at
HK$4.25 per share by way of capitalisation of HK$850,000,000
intercompany loans due from the Group as at 23 June 2011. The
capitalisation of intercompany loans was subsequently approved
in a special general meeting convened on 8 August 2011 and the
shares were issued on 16 August 2011.

The notes on pages 126 to 247 form an integral part of this
consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate information

Haitong International Group Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 25th Floor, New
World Tower, 16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group was
involved in the following principal activities:

° securities, futures and options contracts broking and
trading

° the provision of margin and other financing

° the provision of corporate advisory, placing and
underwriting services

o bullion contracts dealing and trading

° leveraged foreign exchange trading

° the provision of nominee and custodian services

o the provision of fund management

° the provision of financial planning and advisory
services

o proprietary securities trading

Change of financial year end date in prior years

On 21 December 2009, the former holding company, NWS
Holdings Limited disposed of its controlling interest to
Haitong International Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Hai Tong (HK) Financial Holdings Limited). As a result,
to conform with the financial year end date of its holding
companies, Haitong International Holdings Limited and
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd., the financial year end date
of the Company and its subsidiaries apart from Haitong
International Securities Company Limited has been changed
from 30 June to 31 December.

Accordingly, the previous financial period covered a
18-month period from 1 July 2009 to 31 December 2010.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Haitong
International Securities Group Limited have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by available-forsale investments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 3.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective for the year and relevant to the
Group’s operation

HKAS 1 (amendment), ‘Presentation of
financial statements’, effective for the
period beginning on or after 1 January
2010. The amendment clarifies that the
potential settlement of a liability by the
issue of equity is not relevant to its
classification as current or non-current.
By amending the definition of current
liability, the amendment permits a liability
to be classified as non-current (provided
that the entity has an unconditional right
to defer settlement by transfer of cash or
other assets for at least 12 months after
the accounting period) notwithstanding the
fact that the entity could be required by the
counterparty to settle in shares at any time.
The amendment has not resulted in any
impact on the Group's financial statements
as the Group had not issued convertible
instrument during the current year.



2

ERETTHERBE (#)

2.1 REEE (&)

(a) MERERILEREEER
BHEZER - BIIR2RE
(#)

o FHAEGIHEMNF24 (KE
1) [EEE TR | - 2R
R 72003F A& H
SRR 2455 [ BEHE T B
Bl RIERTEAEBALM
ETBEBITNES R
BUB T RS AR B
ET M E AR AEE
BAAEEHMRZALMNE
Ko IR AR E K
AL EE R R W ENE
AR BB E R R 2 B E
MR 5 - A& B E 3
TRZERME G ER
F245 (BIER]) » #ER
A7 B BTG #R R MY SE34RR B
B R ER B AEE
WEBATE -

2

B aR MY

Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective for the year and relevant to the
Group'’s operation (continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related party
disclosures’. It supersedes HKAS 24,
‘Related party disclosures’, issued in 2003.
The revised standard clarifies and simplifies
the definition of a related party and
removes the requirement for government-
related entities to disclose details of all
transactions with the government and
other government-related entities. The
revised standard also requries the Group
and the parent to disclose any transactions
between its subsidiaries and its associates.
The Group has adopted HKAS 24 (Revised)
in relation to the related party transactions
as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. The adoption of this
standard does not have material impact to
the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective for the year and relevant to the
Group'’s operation (continued)

Amendment to HKAS 34 ‘Interim financial
reporting’, effective for the period
beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
The amendment is part of the HKICPA's
annual improvements project published
in May 2010. It emphasizes the existing
disclosure principles in HKAS 34 and adds
further guidance to illustrate how to apply
these principles. Greater emphasis has
been placed on the disclosure principles
for significant events and transactions.
Additional requirements cover of changes
to fair value measurement (if significant),
and the need to update relevant information
from the most recent annual report. The
change only results in additional disclosures
in the interim financial information of
the Group and thus did not result in any
additional disclosure in these consolidated
financial statements.

HKAS 36 (amendment),
assets’, effective for the period beginning

‘Impairment of

on or after 1 January 2010. The amendment
clarifies that the largest cash-generating
unit (or group of units) to which goodwill
should be allocated for the purposes
of impairment testing is an operating
segment, as defined by HKFRS 8. The
Group has adopted this amendment
to HKAS 36 to the impairment testing
performed on the goodwill in current year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations

effective for the year and relevant to the
Group's operation (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 7 'Financial
instruments: disclosures’, effective for the
period beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
The amendment is part of the HKICPA's
annual improvements project published
in May 2010. It clarifies seven disclosure
requirements for financial instruments,
with a particular focus on the qualitative
disclosures and credit risk disclosures. The
Group adopted this amendment to HKFRS
7 in relation to credit risk exposures of the
Group.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19, ‘Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity instruments’, effective
for the period beginning on or after
1 July 2010. The interpretation clarifies the
accounting by an entity when the terms
of a financial liability are renegotiated
and result in the entity issuing equity
instruments to a creditor of the entity
to extinguish all or part of the financial
liability (debt for equity swap). It requires
a gain or loss to be recognised in profit or
loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial liability and the fair value of the
equity instruments issued. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments
should be measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. This
interpretation however does not apply to
the debt to equity swap (loan capitalization)
entered with the immediate holding
company. This incorporation however does
not apply to the debt to equity swap (loan
capitulation) entered with the immediate
holding company.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective for the year and relevant to the
Group'’s operation (continued)

o HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 (amendment), ‘Customer
loyalty programmes’. The amendment is
part of the HKICPAs annual improvements
published in May 2010. It clarifies that
when measuring the fair value of loyalty
incentive, entities should take into account
both the value of the award that would be
offered to customers and the proportion
of the award credit is not expected to be
redeemed by customers. The amendment
does not result in a material impact to the
Group's financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective for the year but not relevant to the
Group’s operation

° HKAS 17 (amendment), ‘Leases’

° HKFRS 2 (amendment), ‘Group cash-settled
share-based payment transactions’

° HKFRS 5 (amendment), ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’

° HKAS 32 (amendment), ‘Classification of
rights issues’
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective for the year but not relevant to the
Group'’s operation (continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 (amendment),
‘Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement’

HKAS 19 (amendment), 'Employee
benefits’

Third improvements to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (2010) were issued
in May 2010 by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, except
for amendments to HKAS 34 ‘interim
financial information’, HKFRS 7 ‘financial
instruments: disclosures’, and HK(IFRIC)
— Int 13 ‘customer loyalty programmes’
as disclosed in note 2.1(a) above, all are
not currently relevant to the Group. All
improvements are effective in the financial
periods beginning from 1 January 2011.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, effective
for the periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015. The standard addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued
in November 2009 and October 2010. It
replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that relate
to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories: those measured
as at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition. The classification
depends on the entity’'s business model
for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the instrument. For financial liabilities,
the standard retains most of the HKAS 39
requirements. The main change is that, in
cases where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income
rather than the income statement, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9's
full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS
9 upon its effective date, which is for the
accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2015.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 7 (amendment) ‘Disclosures —
Transfers of financial assets’, effective for
the period beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
The amendment introduces new disclosure
requirement on transfers of financial
assets. Disclosure is required by class of
asset of the nature, carrying amount and
a description of the risks and rewards of
financial assets that have been transferred
to another party yet remain on the entity’s
balance sheet. The gain or loss on the
transferred assets and any retained interest
in those assets must be given. In addition,
other disclosures must enable users to
understand the amount of any associated
liabilities, and the relationship between the
financial assets and associated liabilities.
The disclosures must be presented by
type of ongoing involvement. For example,
the retained exposure could be presented
by type of financial instrument (such as
guarantees, call or put options), or by type
of transfer (such as factoring of receivables,
securitisations or securities lending). The
Group will apply the amendment from
1 January 2012.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKAS 1 (amendment) ‘Presentation of
financial statements’, effective for the
accounting period beginning on or after
1 July 2012. The amendment requires
entities to group items presented in
‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on
the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
(reclassification adjustments). The
amendments do not address which items
are presented in OCI. The Group will apply
the amendment from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial
statements’, effective for the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January
2013. The new standard builds on
existing principles by identifying the
concept of control as the determining
factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company. The
standard provides additional guidance
to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. The Group
is yet to assess HKFRS 10’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 10 no later than
the accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangement’, effective for
the accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2013. The standard is a more
realistic reflection of joint arrangements by
focusing on the rights and obligations of
the arrangement rather than its legal form.
There are two types of joint arrangement:
joint operations and joint ventures. Joint
operations arise where a joint operator
has rights to the assets and obligations
relating to the arrangement and hence
accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses. Joint ventures
arise where the joint operator has rights
to the net assets of the arrangement and
hence equity accounts for its interest.
Proportional consolidation of joint ventures
is no longer allowed. As a result of the
pronouncement of HKFRS 11, HKAS 28 has
been revised and renamed as ‘Associates
and joint ventures’, which is also effective
for the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. The revised standard
includes the requirements that both joint
ventures, as well as associates to be equity
accounted. The Group will apply HKFRS
11 and HKAS 28 (revised) from 1 January
2013. It is not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statement
as the Group does not have any joint
arrangement and associate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in other
entities’, effective for the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The
new standard includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, special purpose vehicles and
other off balance sheet vehicles. The Group
will adopt HKFRS 12 from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’
effective for the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. This
new standard aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing
a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The requirements do not
extend the use of fair value accounting
but provide guidance on how it should be
applied where its use is already required
or permitted by other standards within
HKFRSs. The Group will adopt HKFRS 13
from 1 January 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statement of the Company and all
its subsidiaries made up to the 31 December
2011.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from intercompany transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2 EEGHBERE @) 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
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2.3 Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than deferred tax assets, financial assets and
goodwill), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is as the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case;
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the income statement in the year in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the year in which it arises.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.4 Fixed assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the year in which it is
incurred.

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment, and where the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or
as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-
line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and  Over the shorter of the

buildings lease terms and 2.5%
Leasehold 20%

improvements
Furniture, fixtures 20%

and equipment
Computer hardware 30%
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.4 Fixed assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Computer software and system development

Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs that
are directly attributable to the design and testing
of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are
met:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the
software product so that it will be available
for use;
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2 EEGHBERE @) 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

24 EEEE (&)

2.4 Fixed assets (continued)
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(b) Computer software and system development
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(continued)

(i) management intends to complete the
software product and use or sell it;

(iiiy  there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the software
product will generate probable future
economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the software product are
available; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the software
product during its development can be
reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as
part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not
meet these criteria are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as
an asset in a subsequent year.

Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives, from three to ten years.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

25

2.6

Intangible assets (other than goodwill and computer
software and system development)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation year and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each balance sheet date.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange and
the Futures Exchange, and throttle rate for trading
order to be transmitted to the Automated Matching
System of the Stock Exchange, with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Other assets

Other assets held on a long term basis are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.7

2.8

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessors are
accounted for as operating leases. Rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes
a party to it and assesses whether an embedded
derivatives is required to be separated from the host
contract when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives
are not closely related to those of the host contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are presented in the income statement.
Dividend income from these financial assets is
recognised in the income statement when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction
costs. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well
as through the amortisation process.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Group's
management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity, other than:

° those that the Group upon initial recognition
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss;

° those that the Group designates as
available-for-sale; and

° those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Held-to-maturity investments (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction
costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statements when the investments are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through
amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity securities that are designated as available
for sale or are not classified in any of the other
two categories. After initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value, with gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income until the investment
is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is included in the income statement.
Interest and dividends earned are reported
as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as “Other income” in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below. Losses arising from the impairment of
such investments are recognised in the income
statement as “Impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets” and are transferred
from the available-forsale investment revaluation
reserve.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(v) Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business at the balance
sheet date. For investments where there is no
active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm'’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same and a
discounted cash flow analysis.

2.9 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date

whether there is any objective evidence that a financial

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on financial assets carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to advances to customers and
accounts receivable, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such
as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
changes in the technological, market economic
or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not
be able to collect all of the amounts due under
the original terms of an invoice. The carrying
amount of the receivables is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts
are derecognised when they are assessed as
uncollectible.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(ii) Awvailable-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less
any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. A provision for
impairment is made for available-for-sale equity
investments when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost
or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant”
or “prolonged” requires judgement. In addition,
the Group evaluates other factors, such as the
share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are not
reversed through the income statement.

2.10 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
payables and accruals and loans and other borrowings
are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “finance costs”
in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the amortisation process.

2.12 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.

2.14 Income tax

The tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior years are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted on substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.14 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
jointly-controlled entity, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.14 Income tax (continued)

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
jointly-controlled entity, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

from the profit and loss on sale of available-for-
sale investments and investment at fair value
through profit or loss, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed or
entered;

commission on dealing in securities, futures,
options and bullion contracts and the profit and
loss on trading in securities, futures, options and
bullion contracts, on the transaction dates when
the relevant contract notes are executed;

consultancy and financial advisory fees, placing,
underwriting and sub-underwriting commissions,
and commission income from financial planning,
on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms
of the underlying agreements;

income from fund management, custodian and
handling services, in the year in which such

services are rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument;

income from leveraged foreign exchange
transactions, on an accrual basis; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.16 Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
with reference to the fair value estimated by external
valuer under a valuation model commonly used in the
market.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account
is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the year in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting year has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a year represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that year.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting
is conditional upon a market condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.16 Share-based payment transactions

(continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum, an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

2.17 Other employee benefits

(i) Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts
on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted
to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.17 Other employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “"MPF Scheme"”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's
employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when an employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The refunded contribution is recognised
in the consolidated income statement to offset
the current year contribution made.

2.18 Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the balance sheets, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved
by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised
as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum of
association and Bye-Laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.19 Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’'s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using
the functional currency rates ruling at the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollars. As at the balance sheet date, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised as
other comprehensive income to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the
year.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below:

(i) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2011 was
HK$9,854,000 (31 December 2010: HK$9,854,000).
No impairment is considered necessary as at
31 December 2011 as the prospect of the cash-
generating units is favorable to the Company. More
details are given in note 14.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(ii)

Impairment allowances on advances to
customers

The Group reviews its advances to customers to
assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in the consolidated income statement, the
Group makes judgments as to whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers in a group.

Management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are
reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.

More details on the credit risk of the advances to
customers are included in note 21.
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3

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(iii) Estimation of realisability of deferred tax

assets

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
tax losses not yet used and temporary deductible
differences arising from depreciation of fixed assets.
As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax credits
can be utilised. Management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management's assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group recognised
deferred tax assets of approximately HK$2.7 million
(31 December 2010: HK$2.3 million). Should future
taxable profit become totally unavailable, the Group
would need to decrease the deferred tax assets and
increase its deferred tax expenses by approximately
HK$2.7 million for the year (18 months ended
31 December 2010: HK$2.3 million).

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2011, the Group has
unrecognised deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$25 million (31 December 2010: HK$22 million)
arising from the subsidiaries of the Group which
management consider that these subsidiaries are less
probable to generate available future taxable profit to
utilise the deferred tax benefit.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(iv) Fair value of derivative financial instruments

(v)

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which
are not traded in active markets (for example, overthe-
counter derivatives) are determined using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select
methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in assumptions about these
methods and assumptions could affect reported fair
value of derivative financial instruments.

Classification of held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the
Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold
such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to
keep these investments to maturity other than for
specific circumstances — for example, selling an
insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be
required to reclassify the entire class as available-for
sale investments. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value instead of amortised cost. If the
entire class of held-to-maturity investments is tainted,
the fair value would be decreased by HK$11 million as
compared to the amortised costs, with corresponding
charge of impairment loss to the consolidated income
statement.
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Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Executive Committee as its chief
operating decision maker.

All transactions between business segments are conducted
on an arm'’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and
costs being eliminated. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining
business segment performance.

According to HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments:

(@)  the broking segment engages in securities, futures,
options and bullion contracts broking and dealing;

(b)  the margin and other financing segment engages in
the provision of margin financing to margin customers,
and personal loans and commercial loans to individuals
and corporate customers, but excluding the provision
of financing to corporate finance clients which is
covered under the corporate advisory, placing and
underwriting segment;

(c) the corporate advisory, placing and underwriting
segment engages in the provision of corporate
advisory, placing and underwriting services as well as
the provision of financing to corporate finance clients;

(d) the trading and investment segment engages in
investment holding, and proprietary trading of
securities, futures, options, bullion contracts and
leveraged foreign exchange trading;

(e) the financial planning and advisory services segment
engages in the provision of financial planning and
advisory services; and

(f)  the "“others” segment comprises fund management
and the provision of custodian and handling services.
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Segment information (continued)

During the year, the Group reclassified its interest income
arising from provision of financing to corporate finance
clients from margin and other financing segment to
corporate advisory, placing and underwriting segment to
reflect the Group’s provision of full range of capital markets
and corporate finance products to its corporate finance
clients. Segment information for the 18 months ended
31 December 2010 was reclassified to reflect the change in
composition of reportable segments.

The following table presents revenue and profit for the
Group's business segments:

BEEY RRRAMESR REN REREH ERRRE EEEHRERRS ifb W ES
Corporate advisory,
Margin and placing and Trading and Financial planning and
Broking other financing underwriting investment advisory services Others Eliminations Consolidated

BEANE HE00F BEANE HEN0F BEANE HEN0F HEANE HE010F HENNE AZ00F EEANE HEN0F BEANE HEN10F HENNE HZ2010%
128318 128318 128318 12A31B 12B31R  12A31B  12A318 12A%1R  12A31B  12A31R 12B31A  12A31B  12A31A 12A31R  12A31E  12A31H
LEE L8ER LFE L8R LEE i8R LEE i8R LEE SR LEE b8ER LEE L8R LEE L18ER
Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Fortte  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe
year 18 months year 18 months year 18 months year 18 months year 18 months year 18 months year 18 months year 18 months
ended31 ended31 ended31 ended3! ended31 ended3! ended31 ended31 ended31 ended3! ended31 ended3! ended31 ended3! ended31 ended3!
December December December December December December December December December December December December December December December December
21 2010 21 2010 21 2010 M 2010 M 2010 M 2010 2m 2010 20M 2010
Tén TEx TEn TR Tz TEr  TEr  TER TEr TEr TR TEr TRn TR TEr  TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

AEHUA - Segment revenue:
HETIRER Sales to external customers 443130 803834 160446 197087 234710 256454 21851 94208 44027 54834 54,993 53468 - - 959,157 1459935
ROURIBE Intersegment sales 2 32 44,365 39,807 - - - - - - - - (44391) (39,839 - -
it Total 443156 803916 204811 236894 234710 256454 21851 94208 44027 54834 54993 53468  (44391)  (39,839) 959,157 1,459,935
At Other income - - 44788 2894 1,650 4,404 8835 16847 - - 1316 4843 - - 56589 55018

! Less:

EERFRR Employee benefit costs (274.443)  (464127)  (58,201)  (60435)  (85140)  (78.639)  (7926) (28888  (34,420) (41909  (20722)  (17625) - - (480,852) (691,623
bR Other expenses (129233)  (168574) (112,378)  (107193)  (80,987) (103,529)  (15575)  (25263) ~ (9,003) (14,213  (50,140) ~ (46,676) 44,391 39,839  (352,925) (425,609)
eS| Segment results 39480 M5 79020 98190 70,233 78,690 7185 56904 604 (1,288)  (14,553)  (5,990) - - 181969 397721
KAMER Unallocated expenses (2911) (894)
FEEBE 0T Share of profit of an associate - 1718
RBAER Profit before taxation 179,058 398545
HERT Taxation expenses (25,973)  (53,386)
£ /BRI Profit for the year/the period 153,085 345,159
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5 Revenue and other income

An analysis of revenue (which is also the Group's turnover)

DITEAT - and other income is as follows:
rEH
Group
HZ2011%F HZ=E2010%F
12A31H 12H31H
LLFE 1E181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
THxT FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
A Revenue
BEHEENMELER Securities dealing and broking:
B BB ML ET Commission on securities dealing
Pk and broking 292,826 591,720
HE  HEMERES Futures, options and commodities
P& TRES dealing and broking:
e BEAELRES Commission on futures, options and
MEEEBZRE commodities dealing and broking 140,478 199,822
FREAMEE Margin and other financing:
FEMEMEEEZSHZ Interest income on margin and
F B WA other financing activities 160,446 197.087
TEME NEA Corporate finance and advisory:
BRI EEBERABIRA Consultancy and financial advisory
fee income 46,670 64,428
e - Bk BHEAR Placing, underwriting and
sub-underwriting commission 37,499 91,283
MEERERTFREEES Provision of financing to corporate
finance clients 150,541 100,743
EeBENEE Bullion contracts dealing:
BEEREEBEN AR Commission on bullion contracts
dealing 9,826 12,342
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5 WARHEAMKA (4#) 5 Revenue and other income (continued)
rEH
Group
HZ2011%F HZ=E2010%F
12A31H 12H31H
LLFE 1E181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
FET FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
WA () Revenue (continued)
AR A MRE IRTS ¢ Provision of nominee and custodian
services:
HRIBARRE RS E Custodian and handling service fees 22,985 29,049
HeER Fund management:
BEBIA Management fee income 31,487 23,910
RIRBIWA Performance fee income 521 509
BEEE WA : Income from proprietary investment:
BAFERT ABR T (Loss)/profit on financial assets at
& (BER),/%5H - B8 fair value through profit or loss, net (16,209) 24,821
HE - HiRE - mmk Profit on futures, options,
EeBENEEL commodities and bullion
wmAl o JFEE contracts trading, net 27,088 36,911
AR B A Dividend income 2,620 2,564
KEBEBES 2 FEBA Interest income from investment
in debt securities 4,832 -
BIRZINEEE : Leveraged foreign exchange trading:
ERIINEEE 2 WA - FEE Income from leveraged foreign
exchange trading, net 3,520 29,912
B R & i s AR TS Financial planning and advisory
services:
e B 75 2R Bl N 75 58 AR 755 Commission on the provision of
2R financial planning and advisory
services 44,027 54,834
959,157 1,459,935
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5 WARHEAMKA (4#) 5 Revenue and other income (continued)
rEH
Group
HZ2011%F HZ=E2010%F
12A31H 12H31H
LLFE 1E181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
THExT FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hug A Other income
IRITH B UA Bank interest income 44,788 28,924
HEAIHEEREY Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Wz - FEE investments, net 8,406 11,267
HEDHEBIEFE Gain on disposal of assets/liabilities
BE,/ affzlkzs classified as held for sale - 2,950
HEB SN RIS (M) Gain on disposal of an associate (note) - 4,843
Hh Others 3,395 7,034
56,589 55,018
BT Note:
H Z=2010F12A318 L18A A » NEB A E During the 18 months ended 31 December 2010, the Group
51%7# 7 175 8 A LA IR € X 815,680,000/ T disposed of the entire 49% equity interest in CMTF Asset
ERBREAREESTIEGR AR ZEP49% MR A HE Management Limited to the other 51% equity holder for cash
I o FRIAR S R ER4,843,0007 T © consideration of HK$15,680,000. The transaction has resulted in a

gain of HK$4,843,000.
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6 BRBIADEF 6 Profit before taxation
REBZBRBATEF IR, (GTA) T3& The Group's profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
BEEE (crediting):

rEH
Group
BZ2011%F E=2010%F
12831H 12A318 1t
LLFE 181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
FET FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HgEmy B The other operating expenses include:
KERET 2 Minimum lease payments under
=EES : operating leases:
T BT Land and buildings 71,845 80,576
SR Computer equipment 16,112 13,426
ZERDEN 5 Auditors’ remuneration 3,840 4,940
INEZEER - FFE Foreign exchange differences, net (11,612) (3,467)
TEETEEZESE Loss on disposal of fixed assets 38 452
HE M (BIEFRSHE®)  Repair and maintenance
(including system maintenance) 41,245 54,119
RIS R Quotemeter services 5,412 10,086
THHEE  BEREEMAX Marketing, advertising and promotion
expense 22,159 49,313
R EHE MR Equipment rental and servicing 41,313 42,533
HsE AR Bad debts written off 354 194
EERAMFX (BIEEEMSE Employee benefits costs (including
khtmaEER) directors’ remuneration and
five highest paid employees:
e ROERL (FTEE7%8) Salaries and allowances
(note 7 and 8) 252,880 302,078
TE4T Bonuses 72,399 114,715
BEETEMAE Commission to accounts executives 141,587 252,410
PARR AR S A+t 27 B R RE A = Equity-settled share option expense
(M+3£30) (note 30) 6,396 12,791
RIREFHEIHE IR Pension scheme contributions 7,812 10,581
B DR UL R Less: Forfeited contributions (222) (952)
480,852 691,623
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6 BREANEF (@) 6 Profit before taxation (continued)
rEH
Group
BZ2011%F E=2010%F
12A31H 12H318 1k
LLFE 181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
FET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
S BRI L IFRIEEER  Interest expense for securities broking
ZABRE and margin financing operations:
—SRITERNEL — bank loans and overdrafts 23,504 28,078
— HMER - other loans
(Bt5E27 & 34(a)(i) (notes 27 and 34(a)(i)) 10,520 10,394
— EREBPERRK — accounts payable to clients 102 722
34,126 39,194

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011



7

EEME

T BRI LR A REFBRREGIZE161
FREFRB 2 FEESHEFE

B RSaR MY

Notes to Financial Statements

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

AEE
Group
BZ2011%F EZE20104F
12A31H 12A31H
LEE 1E181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
FExT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
we Fees:
HITES Executive directors 500 1,554
ENITES Non-executive directors 1,156 1,780
B IENITES Independent non-executive directors 700 1,050
2,356 4,384
B : Other emoluments:
WITES - Executive directors:
e KIERh Salaries and allowances 11,161 15,615
TEAT (K97t (a)) Bonuses (note (a)) 10,060 19,070
£ EBEIERF Employee share option benefits
(F4EE (b)) (note (b)) 1,319 4,833
RIKEFHEIfERK Pension scheme contributions 72 117
HHMITES : Non-executive directors:
1B BB ERT Employee share option benefits
(FftE (b)) (note (b)) 384 1,713
B IEITES ¢ Independent non-executive directors:
& B B ik ta A Employee share option benefits
(BzE (o) (note (b)) 288 918
23,284 42,266
25,640 46,650
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7

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(a)

Bonuses include performance related bonuses, in
which certain executive directors of the Company are
entitled to bonus payments which are determined as a
percentage of the profit after taxation of the Group.

During the 18 months ended 31 December 2010,
certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the
share option scheme of the Company, further details
on the share option scheme are set out in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised in
the consolidated income statement over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant in 2010
and the amount in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the directors’ remuneration
disclosures.
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7 EEME (#) 7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(a) BIYFHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
HZE201MF12A31BLLEE For the year ended 31 December 2011
2 e
He  HeREE T EREER HE [ HeaE
Employee Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses benefits  contributions remuneration

Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

VER Man Mo Leung 250 - - 9% - 346
BE2 Tsui Hing Chuen, William 250 - - 96 - 346
|37 Lau Wai Piu, Bill 200 - - 96 - 296
700 - - 288 - 988
EZ20105F12H31H L1818 B For the 18 months ended 31 December 2010
[z8 0%
e Bkl T ERERT HEIR il
Employee Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses benefits  contributions  remuneration

TAR TAR ThR ThR ThR ThR
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

YER Man Mo Leung 375 - - 306 - 681
BE2 Tsui Hing Chuen, William 375 - = 306 = 681
1 Lau Wi Piu, Bil 300 - - 306 - 606

1,050 - - 918 - 1,968
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7 E=E=ME #) 7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(b) BITEERFHITES (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
HE2011F12A3MBLELEE For the year ended 31 December 2011

2 Be
B HeREE T EREER HE 5 HenE

Employee Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses benefits  contributions remuneration

Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

g Executive directors:

ZEE Li Jianguo 300 - - 153 12 465

A LinYong 200 1,120 2,560 153 12 4,045

E45 () Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter (Note (al) - 1213 - - 4 1,217

FRs Lee Yiu Wing, William - 2,760 2,350 306 12 5,428

RER Chan Chi On, Derek - 2,460 2,010 287 12 4,769

it Poon Mo Yiu, Patrick - 2,400 1,800 229 12 4,441

6 (B Hui Yee, Wilson (Note (o)) - 1,208 1,340 191 8 2747

500 11,161 10,060 1,319 72 23,112

HRTES Non-executive directors:

FH (Kilc) Li Mingshan (Note (c) 198 - - - - 198

EFR JiYuguang 200 - - 9 - 296

SR Wu Bin 200 - - 9 - 296

EREE (Mitd) Hiroki Miyazato (Note (d) 158 - - - - 158

REE Chen Chungian 200 - - 96 - 296

Lt Cheng Chi Ming, Brian 200 - - 96 - 296
1,156 - - 384 - 1,540
1,656 11,161 10,060 1,703 12 24,652

(@)  F2011F4H29HR(E - (@) Retired on 29 April 2011.

(b)  M2011F4F29EHEERE - (o)  Appointed on 29 April 2011.

(c)  FA201144F29H BT - (c)  Resigned on 29 April 2011

(d 2011 F3R17HEERE - (d)  Appointed on 17 March 2011.
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7 E=E=ME #) 7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(b) BITEERFHITESE (&) (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
(continued)
EZ2010F12831H1E18EA For the 18 months ended 31 December 2010
[E8 R’iRg
e Bkl T ERERT Falfts gt
Employee Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses benefits  contributions  remuneration

TR TR TR TAR ThR ThR
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HiTEZ: Executive directors;
R4 Cheng Kar Shun, Henry 479 - - - 7 186
2R Doo Wai Hoi, William 319 - - - 7 326
RE Li Jianguo 290 - - 489 12 791
A LinYong 307 - - 489 12 808
B4 Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter - 4,815 7130 1,204 18 13,187
K Lee Yiu Wing, William - 3,792 4,220 979 18 9,009
RER Chan Chi On, Derek - 3652 4,900 918 18 9,388
it Poon Mo Yiu, Patrick - 3456 2,800 734 18 7028
259 (Wikte)) Cheng Chi Ming, Brian (Note (e)) 159 - - . 7 166
1,554 16,615 19,070 4833 1 41,189
HES: Non-executive directors:
2R Wong Kwok Kin, Andrew 106 - - - - 106
MER Lam Wai Hon, Patrick 106 - - - - 106
Bk To Hin Tsun, Gerald 106 - - - - 106
35T Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo 106 - - - - 106
I Li Mingshan 580 - - 489 - 1,069
EFL JiYuguang 194 = = 306 = 500
R, Wu Bin 194 - - 306 - 500
RAs Chen Chungian 194 - - 306 - 500
858 (i) Cheng Chi Ming, Brian (Note (e]) 19 - - 306 - 500
1,780 - - 1,713 = 3493
3,334 16,615 19,070 6,546 17 44,682
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7 ESHME @) 7

(b) BITESERIHITES (@)

(e) TR2009%E7A1 BEEZEAHITE
= KEN2010F1 B13E AE A IE
HITES -

FR/PRLEESREBEEMRIER
R F B RRBEUE MBS

8 IEHEREZEER 8

FRNEEFemaLEERENE (BE
2010FF12A31H IE18fE A 1 4%8) E5F - H
Bl 2 FEB R LI sE7E I - RER - 15
EEBZERARNAESE - HIZE2011612A8
A LFENBSLEET|T - #ZE2010
F12A318 L1818 A B ER K E S < i

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
(continued)

(e)  Appointed as executive director on 1 July 2009
and re-designated as non-executive director on
13 January 2010.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year/period.

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included
five (18 months ended 31 December 2010: four) directors,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7 above.
One of the directors was appointed as director during the
year. The total remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2011 disclosed as follows. For the 18 months ended 31

& o December 2010, the amount represents an employee’s
remuneration.
AEH
Group
HZ2011%F EZ=E20104F
12A31H 12A31H
ILFE 1E18fEA
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011* 2010
FTERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e KERL Salaries and allowances 3,020 5,727
RIR& SR Pension scheme contribution 12 18
& EBEIERER Employee share option benefits 191 306
3,223 6,051

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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Five highest paid employees (continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

3,000,00177C%3,500,0007/8 7T HK$3,000,001
3,500,001/8 T2 4,000,000/ 7T HK$3,500,001
4,000,00187C% 4,500,000/ 7T HK$4,000,001
4,500,0018 702 5,000,000/8 7T HK$4,500,001
5,000,001 7T %5,500,0007% 7T HK$5,000,001
5,500,001%7C 26,000,000/ 7T HK$5,500,001
6,000,001;87C26,500,000/8 7T HK$6,000,001

EE A

Number of employees
HZ2011%F HZ=E2010%F
12A31H 12A31H
LLFE 1E181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
to HK$3,500,000 1 -
to HK$4,000,000 - -
to HK$4,500,000 - -
to HK$5,000,000 - -
to HK$5,500,000 - -
to HK$6,000,000 - -
to HK$6,500,000 - 1
1 1

Fi3E

HE2011F12ANBULEFE  HFema 2
BE1EE  HN2011F4A298 R T A
AREEE - HEAREREZHHFEFHE
ERAMEIEL B FE o

EXFREEZFeFEL T eRmASEE
BEAMBNREMNEE -

The remuneration of highest paid employees for the year
ended 31 December 2011 refers to remuneration of Hui Yee,
Wilson, who was appointed as a director of the Company on
29 April 2011. Details of his remuneration as an employee and
as a director are included in this note.

Note: Details of the remuneration disclosed above do not include

amounts paid or payable by way of commissions generated
by employees of the Group.
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BP - REZRITHEFHE

9 BEMAX 9 Taxation expenses
EBFEBRIMERNERBELE 2 G ER Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
it i A 42 Bt £16.5% (20104 : 16.5% ) # 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
& o EEAMME 2 ERB R A TR IE AN EE arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
KEXEBERERENRITEN 2B R assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates

of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

rEH

Group
BZ2011%F EZ=20105F
12831H 12H31H
LEE 11818 A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

RERTHIE — BB Current taxation — Hong Kong

FR /AR E Charge for the year/period 21,379 41,217
B AR B Over-provision in prior periods (851) (3,239)
ZNEAFSTE — AN Current taxation — overseas 1,342 1,528
EIEREIE (FizE28) Deferred taxation (note 28) 4,103 13,880
ER S HRFIAER S Taxation charge for the year/period 25,973 53,386
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Taxation expenses (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of
Hong Kong as follows:

AEH

Group
HZE2011% EZE2010F
12A31H 12H31H
LFE 11818 A
For the For the

year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December

2011 2010

FET THT

HK$'000 HK$'000

B A5t A A Profit before taxation 179,058 398,545
%A #+16.5% (20104 : 165%) Tax calculated at 16.5%

TR HIEA (2010: 16.5%) 29,545 65,760
BAGMTLIE 2 WA Income not subject to tax (24,047) (24,679)
TR FE 2 2 H Expenses not deductible for tax

purposes 14,282 17,999
BEHIE B Over-provision in prior periods (851) (3,239)
I TR 2 B S B 18 Tax losses not recognised 2,642 204
HRBAETERRZ Utilisation of previously unrecognised

HIgEE tax losses (896) (6,912)
EINRRER 7 & Effect of different overseas tax rates 168 (367)
Eh Others 5,130 4,620
ER S EARTIBR Taxation charge for the year/period 25,973 53,386

HZE2011F12A3MBIEFE - AEE 2 F
HEBRER145% (B £2010F12A31H
1F18fEA : 13.4%) °

RRBRAELEFHE AELEF

HE201MF12A318 LFE - AR A5
HERTFEEZ AN BRATE AELERE R
A 7R B2 3E %% #119,930,0005% 7T (E; 22010
12 A31H IE18fE A : 176,648,000 7T) °

10

The average effective tax rate of the Group was 14.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (for the 18 months ended
31 December 2010: 13.4%).

Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 includes a
profit of HK$119,930,000 (18 months ended 31 December
2010: HK$176,648,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.
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11 KRE 11 Dividends
BZE H=E
20115 20104
12A831H 128318
LLFE LE181EA
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
FExT FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEZE2009F12A3181E First interim dividend declared for the
6EAERE—/RPHAEE 6 months ended 31 December 2009
— BRR AR 10751 — HK10 cents per ordinary share - 70,896
FEZE2010F6 A30A Lk Second interim dividend declared for
12 SR> % RTHIIEE.  the 12 months ended 30 June 2010
— SR E BRI — HK®6 cents per ordinary share - 42,538
B Z=20119F6H308 1b Interim dividend declared for the
61 A 5k 2 HAlR & 6 months ended 30 June 2011
— FRE BB — HK6 cents per ordinary share 54,920 =
EZE2011512H83181E¥E  Proposed final dividend for the year
& e LIS ended 31 December 2011
— BRI MR — HK2 cents (18 months ended
(HZ=2010F12A31H 31 December 2010: HK8 cents)
HIE181E A : 871l) per ordinary share 18,307 57203
73,227 170,637

MR2010F3R1MARTT EEEERE L &
ERE M N2010F48168 (ZEH8H) &7
RARRER A RE - &Ik E 22009F
128318 1E6fE A v % — Xk Bk B &A% 10
AL WARE DK - F—RFHREER
20104 A30H (R8H) Ik - MIREIK
ZRE KB A 70,896,000/ 7T ©

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 11 March
2010, the directors resolved to declare a first interim
dividend of HK10 cents per share in cash for the 6 months
ended 31 December 2009, to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 16 April 2010. The first interim dividend was paid on
Friday, 30 April 2010, with a total of HK$70,896,000 cash
dividend paid to the shareholders.



1

RE (#)

R201068H19RRTTrEEE SR L &
E R M 7A2010F9H28H (BEH =) &7
RARRE B2 RE - §IKE ZE20105F
6A30R8 [E1218 A = % = )X+ HA % B & %6
AL WEAIRE DK - MERRER AR UG
B oo BTRAFHREER2010611H10R
EH=) RN MRRES2HEEKRES
$£7,735,000% 7t + W3 AR B 5 B AT
5,697,393 15 °

MR201MF8A4R BT v EEE R L &
ERE A R2011F98198 (28 —) %71
RAFRRAMMZIRE - EIREBE20115F
6H30H LE61E A < # Bk B & AR6AE L - I
IR & DIk o 85— X HR BB R20114F
9A308 (B8A) kf - MRREMN2HEE
%54 ££54,920,00078 T °

201238130 - EFEZMEE20114F
124318 IEFEIK 3 AR BRI -
WIAIRE 5K (BiZ=2010812 8318 1E181E
A R8BIl - YAREDIR) -

REEZ KRR S AT AR AIBIRNE
ERRBFAS LHER - TRMEE -

1
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Notes to Financial Statements

Dividends (continued)

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 19 August
2010, the directors resolved to declare a second interim
dividend of HK6 cents per share in cash with a scrip option
for the 12 months ended 30 June 2010, to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Tuesday, 28 September 2010. The second
interim dividend was paid on Wednesday, 10 November
2010, with a total of HK$7,735,000 cash dividend paid to
the shareholders and 5,597,393 shares were issued in scrip
form.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 4 August
2011, the directors resolved to declare an interim dividend
of HK6 cents per share in cash for the 6 months ended
30 June 2011, to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Monday,
19 September 2011. The first interim dividend was paid on
Friday, 30 September 2011, with a total of HK$54,920,000
cash dividend paid to the shareholders.

On 13 March 2012, the directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of HK2 cents per share in cash for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (18 months ended 31 December
2010: HK8 cents per share in cash).

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the

approval of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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12 RAFAREFEABGERER 12 Earnings per share attributable to equity holders
of the Company

BRERBH B IHRBEFARNR B EBR The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based
AFFE ARG SN - ARFANEETERER on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
ZINEFHHETE - holders of the Company, and the weighted average number

of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

TR EESE R R S R TIRE F AR R R A The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is
BARBMEFGFTE - stERTRA 2 B based on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
nwEFag - B EERERRBIAEAZ of the Company. The weighted average number of ordinary
FABETEBEREEBHER - THERRERK shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
IS E EE e E BT SRR RS shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings
BT ER AT ER - MREREET - per share calculation, and the weighted average number

of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

(a) BREFRZRF (a) Basic earnings per share
BZE H=E
201145 20104
12831H 12H31H
LFE 1E181& A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
NN TIRRAFEB AFEMG %A Profit attributable to equity holders
(F7#&7T) of the Company (HK$'000) 153,204 345,795
BETEZEKRMETESE Weighted average number of
(Fh%) ordinary shares in issue
(in thousands) 790,847 708,554
FREEAREF| Basic earnings per share
(FRBL) (HK cents per share) 19.37 48.80
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12 RATRREFEAEBRGERER (&) 12 Earnings per share attributable to equity holders
of the Company (continued)

(b) BREHZF (b) Diluted earnings per share
BZE HE
20114 20104
12831H 128318
LFEE 1H181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
NN TIRRAFEB ARG %A Profit attributable to equity holders
(F#&T) of the Company (HK$'000) 153,204 345,795
B 2T E AR INFEF 5 & Weighted average number of
(Fi%) ordinary shares in issue
(in thousands) 790,847 708,554
TR  F R Adjustments for share options
(FH%) (in thousands) 911 1,792
791,758 710,346
FREHBERT Diluted earnings per share
(FRANL) (HK cents per share) 19.35 48.68
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13 BEEEE 13 Fixed assets
rEE Group
HELH & e
LT HENREEE  HERZE EKELE  REGER ait
Computer
Leasehold Furniture, software
land and Leasehold fixtures and Computer  and system
buildings improvements  equipment hardware  development Total
TiEn Tin Tin Tin Tin Tan
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2011E12831R 31 December 2011
R2011%E1A18 At 1 January 2011
KA Cost 3,092 62,694 52,298 81,892 216,039 416,015
2iEE Accumulated depreciation (1,061) (55,171) (44,122) (73,564) (90,677) (264,595)
REZE Net carrying amount 2,031 1523 8,176 8,328 125,362 151,420
R2011%51A18 At 1 January 2011, net of
hZEnE accumulated depreciation 2,031 7523 8,176 8,328 125,362 151,420
RE Additions - 6,959 2,254 11,983 49,258 70,454
HE Disposals - (1) (144) - - (145)
b Depreciation (1) (3,496) (3.318) (7.276) (29,391) (43,558)
20115128318 At 31 December 2011, net of
NhERENE acoumulated depreciation 1,954 10,985 6,968 13,035 145,229 17811
R2011%E128318 : At 31 December 2011:
KA Cost 3,092 69,639 53,409 88,933 265,297 480,370
2ENE Accumulated depreciation (1,138) (58,654) (46,441) (75,898) (120,068) (302,199)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,954 10,985 6,968 13,035 145,229 178,171
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13 BEEEE (&) 13 Fixed assets (continued)
REE (4F) Group (continued)
gL il Ean
kgF HENERE  RELRRA EWEl  RAGER aif
Computer
Furniture, software
Leasehold land Leasehold ~ fixtures and Computer ~ and system
and buildings  improvements equipment hardware  development Total

TEL TEL TEL ThEL TEL TEL
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000

R2010£12831R 31 December 2010
R200967R18 : At 1 July 2009:

AR Cost 3,092 59,641 48,425 76,186 148,462 335,806

2EHE Accumulated depreciation (945) (50,723) (38,673) (64,940) (61,489) (216,770)

REZE Net carrying amount 2,147 8,918 9,762 11,246 86,973 119,036
20007818 At 1 July 2009, net of

ThZENE accumulated depreciation 2147 8,918 9,752 11,246 86,973 119,036
AE Additions - 4,09 4,081 6,132 65,921 80,228
HE Disposals - (369) (102) (32) = (503)
REBAGHEA Fived assets acquired in

BEEE business combination - - 1 253 1,665 2,029
& Depreciation (116) (5,120) (5,676) (9,271) (29,187) (49,370)
2010512318 At 31 December 2010, net of

ThZERE accumulated depreciation 2,031 7523 8176 8328 125,362 151,420
20106128318 : At 31 December 2010:

A Cost 3,092 62,694 52,298 81,892 216,039 416,015

2iEME Accumulated depreciation (1,061) (55,171) (44,122) (73,564) (90,677) (264,595)

REFE Net carrying amount 2,031 7523 8,176 8,328 125,362 151,420
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13 BEEEE (&) 13 Fixed assets (continued)
¥ /N Company
HELH & e
LT HENREEE  HERZE EKELE  REGER ait
Computer
Leasehold Furniture, software

land and Leasehold fixtures and Computer  and system
buildings improvements  equipment hardware  development Total
ThR ThR ThR ThR TERT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R2011E12831R 31 December 2011
ROME1R18 : At 1 January 2011:
KA Cost 1,178 37625 31,014 238 62 70,117
2iEE Accumulated depreciation (316) (30,377) (24,010) (232) (62) (54,997)
BEFE Net carrying amount 862 7248 7,004 6 - 15,120
R2011%51A18 At 1 January 2011, net of
hZEnE accumulated depreciation 862 7248 7004 6 - 15,120
NE Additions - 6,959 1,984 26 - 8,969
irk:3 Disposals - (1) (44) - - (45)
ik Depreciation (30) (3,396) (2,791) (31) - (6,248)
20115128318 At 31 December 2011, net of
NhEENE accumulated depreciation 832 10,810 6,153 1 - 17,796
R2011%E128318 : At 31 December 2011:
KA Cost 1178 44,570 32,025 212 62 78,107
2RNE Accumulated depreciation (346) (33,760) (25,872) (2n) (62) (60,311)
ERFE Net carrying amount 832 10,810 6,153 1 - 17,796
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13 BEEEE (&) 13 Fixed assets (continued)
ARATE (#F) Company (continued)
gL il Ean
kgF HENERE  RELRRA EWEl  RAGER aif
Computer
Furniture, software
Leasehold land Leasehold ~ fixtures and Computer ~ and system
and buildings  improvements equipment hardware  development Total

TEL TEL TEL ThEL TEL TEL
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

R2010£12831R 31 December 2010
2009 7R18 : At 1 July 2009:
AR Cost 1,178 34,429 27564 21 62 63,454
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (272) (26,465) (19,679) (207) (62) (46,685)
REZE Net carrying amount 906 7964 7885 14 - 16,769
20007818 At 1 July 2009, net of
Tk2ENE accumulated depreciation 906 7964 7885 14 = 16,769
AE Additions - 4,007 3,545 31 - 7583
il Disposals - (329) 21) - - (350)
ik Depreciation (44) (4,394) (4,408 (39) - (8,882
R2010E12A318 At 31 December 2010, net of
NhRZENE accumulated depreciation 862 7248 7004 6 - 15,120
20106128318 : At 31 December 2010:
WA Cost 1,178 37625 31,014 238 62 70117
2RNE Accumulated depreciation (316) (30,377) (24,010) (232) (62) (54,997)
ERFE Net carrying amount 862 7248 7004 6 - 15,120
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13 BEEEE (#) 13 Fixed assets (continued)
EXFEAEE s HELHEEFURE The Group's leasehold land and buildings included above
B ETYHEFHEE are situated in Hong Kong and are held under the following
lease terms:
KEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20114 20104
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIREFE At net carrying amount:
RHEEE Medium term leases 1,954 2,031
14 HE 14 Goodwill
AEH
Group
12A31H
31 December
20114 20104
2011 2010
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
[EES Goodwill 9,854 9,854
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Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been

allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are

ﬁ : reportable segments, for impairment testing:
o WBRENBAREIASEESMN e  Financial planning and advisory services cash-
54 generating unit; and
s ZERASEERBRESELSN e Asset and fund management services cash generating
unit
PEESRCEABEN 2 EEZEEEN The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
3 cash-generating units is as follows:
B R8I R BEER
& AR ESEBRY Mt
Financial
planning Asset and fund
and advisory management
services services Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BMEZEREA Carrying amount of goodwill 854 9,000 9,854
(i) BERERABARKAESEEES (i) Financial planning and advisory services
iz cash-generating unit
B ISR B A RIS 2 P W Bl & 58 T The recoverable amount of the financial planning and
NFEREBEEAEE FRRAEERE advisory services has been determined based on value

Fﬂtt)&i@‘ﬁﬂi,ﬁﬂ 2 IR & T8 R &=
cHEeMEEAMERZITAEXA
5% (20104F12A31H :5%) * MRS
=T A15% (201066128318 -
15%) ZIBRE » I IIREBARIA R
EREHMSHREZEHMET -

in use calculation using cash flow projections covering
a five-year year approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 5% (31 December 2010: 5%) and cash flows are
using a growth rate of 15% (31 December 2010: 15%)
which is determined based on past performance
and management's expectations for the market
development.
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14

BE (&)
BEERERE (&)

(i) EERECEERBEREELS

(i)

BERESEERGREELESNZ
AkEeEIAEREREAEE £
AEREMERSAFHREAZRS
MIBREE - WEe RETERFTER
2 T ] K B5% (20106128318 :
5%) MRELAEZERANFEA10%
(2010512 A31H : 10%) (3t & &
ESEEME) &10% (20106124
310 :20%) (MEMEESEEMS)
ZEER WHBREBREARRRER
B MEEREZEHMERE

5T #2011F12A318 K%20109F12831H 8
BRERBARBUAREERESEERY
ReEABUFRERR  BEEAETE
BERR - U TNEHAEIEEE T ERE
ZESREBAMKEZ S EEM/E -

BREREMN - RIFEEREBRENMIE
EBEZEE REERREFEN—FNE
ZPEEBRERN - WERFERBERIETT R
HimGERMELARERAR -

PrIRE — PRE A Z TR R SARFT AR KR
IREAEU AR ERR 2R o
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14 Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill (continued)

(ii) Asset and fund management services cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the asset and fund
management services cash-generating unit has been
determined based on value in use calculation using
cash flow projections covering a five-year year approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 5% (31 December
2010: 5%) and cash flows are using a growth rate of
10% (31 December 2010: 10%) (for investment fund
management) and 10% (31 December 2010: 20%) (for
other fund management) which are determined based
on past performance and management’s expectation
for the market development.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the financial planning and advisory services and asset
and fund management services cash-generating units as at
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwvill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.
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15 HtEREE 15 Other intangible assets
AEH
Group
12A31H
31 December

20114 20104

2011 2010

TET THT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BN - Ik RFEEE Cost, net of accumulated amortisation 6,609 4,609
NE Addition - 2,000
NELR HiR At the end of the year/period 6,609 6,609

A (BRE4E) Cost (gross carrying amount) 10,131 10,131
I Accumulated amortisation (3,522) (3,522)
BRMEFE Net carrying amount 6,609 6,609
AREBERWEIR - R2006FRAEBE Upon the adoption of HKAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’ in 2005,
FHERIEIRIR [EFEE]| B NEBRE the Group'’s eligibility rights to trade on or through The Stock
BHMARSIMERARLEBEBHER S Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and The Hong Kong Futures
1TE B 2 & KT BR E F 8 A4,609,0007%5 Exchange Limited of net carrying amount of HK$4,609,000
7t (2010512 A31H : 4,609,000 JT) *© # (31 December 2010: HK$4,609,000) are considered to have
REBERA - BULAFHREE - TRAE indefinite lives, which are not amortised, as the trading
BEETAEREISHE (B EE] A1 B rights have no expiry date. The accumulated amortisation
TR R B REFERE - is brought forward from prior years before the adoption of

HKAS 38 (“intangible assets”).

H £22,000,0007% 7T T3 2N 5= B ¥ B0 R @9 1% The remaining HK$2,000,000 represents the Group's
é‘ NEERZ GIEREBMITHEBE R R investment in throttle rate for trading order to be transmitted
o i EEEWESER o to the Automated Matching System of the Stock Exchange.

This intangible asset has no expiry date.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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16 HthEE 16 Other assets
rEH
Group
12A31H
31 December
20114 2010
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
WRAE - At cost:
REERFT 2 % Deposits with the Stock Exchange:
EEES Compensation fund 650 600
HERES Fidelity fund 350 300
FAEMNAEEKERSES Dealers’ deposit with the Securities
R ERE® and Futures Commission 350 350
ENfER ke Stamp duty deposit 500 500
FRAEE R RN ZFIRE Contributions to The Central Clearing
He 3R and Settlement System Guarantee
Fund 550 300
NFEERREEBR AR Admission fee paid to Hong Kong
ZAEE Securities Clearing Company
Limited 300 300
BEBMER T EREEERT Reserve fund with The SEHK Options
BRABZHEES Clearing House Limited 9,123 24,723
REBREEERRA Deposit with HKFE Clearing
REezZe Corporation Limited in contribution
to the reserve fund 1,500 14,952
BEAECREESHSERAK Cost of membership for a seat
at The Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society 486 486
T RNBEEZSRBER AT  Compensation fund paid to The
ZBEEES Shenzhen Stock Exchange Co., Ltd. 300 300
ﬁ?i/ BEHERREGEEE Settlement Risk Fund paid to The
ZRWERERES Shanghai Securities Central
Clearing & Registration Corporation 387 387
Ht Others 315 315
14,811 43,513

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due
from/to subsidiaries

The investments in subsidiaries and the amounts due from/

SR ¢ to subsidiaries are as follows:
RN F]
Company
12A31H
31 December
20114 20104
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
E TR %A - #AKA{E  Unlisted shares/investments, at cost 105,377 105,377
JE Us B BB A B 2 FRIE Due from subsidiaries 4,024,331 3,176,448
B AR Z KA Due to subsidiaries (1,468,719) (756,097)
2,660,989 2,525,728
BB AR EHRRIBTERT 2B REAERE The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
E‘HE}S fEUR  FERTH B A R Z B 2 BR free and are repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of
HEHEEAQ $TE$H9ET ° these amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate their

fair values.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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17 RHIBRARZREREL, B

REZFIE (#)

17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due

from/to subsidiaries (continued)

FEWBRARFBLT ¢ The particulars of principal subsidiaries are as follows:
BRITRE APRELZ
TEM&L ZEEE/ RABDH
ARER TR A it B BEWEXSH BEE ik TEEK
Place of  Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount the Company

Name and operations  of paid-up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities
ERURGER R A 0 5,000,000/ 7 = 60  AREMIER LR ARG ERT
Epro Global Services Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Provision of call centre and
system maintenance services
AEgBRAR* BE 1,000,000% 70 - 100 FEREER
E-wealth Club Limited* Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Under deregistration
Grand Fortune Company Limited HEHES BT - 100 B5
Cayman Islands HK$1 Investment
BREEER (B8) BRAA B0 20,000,000/ 7T - 100 REEEERS
Hai Tong Asset Management (HK) Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 Provision of fund
Limited management services
BERE (BE) ARAF BE 10,000,000/7C - 100 RECFRARSE
Hai Tong Capital (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 Provision of corporate
advisory services
BREREEERARAA Bk 13,000,00077T - 100 REBRRBEER
Haitong International Asset Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 Investment holding and
Management Limited asset management
Haitong International Asset HEHE 10,0008 - 100 REREEERS
Management (Cayman) Limited Cayman Islands YEN10,000 Provision of investment
management services
BREREEERRBABBAR B 6,000,000/ 7T - 100 BEEE
Haitong International Asset Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 Proprietary trading

Management Nominees Limited

BRBEKRESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due

from/to subsidiaries (continued)

BRITRE APRELZ
EMRL, ZEHE/ RABDH
AR AR R E B EhgreR H# Gk TEEK
Place of  Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount the Company

Name and operations  of paid-up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities
BRERSXBRAR Bk 7000,000% 7 - 100 ESBANEERRS
Haitong International Bullion Hong Kong HK$7.000,000 Bullion contracts
Limited dealing and trading
Haitong International (BVI) Limited RERLES 11,5767 100 - RERK
British Virgin HK$11,576 Investment holding

Islands
BRERERERAR BE 20,000,000/ 7T - 100 Rt E A AR
Haitong International Capital Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 Provision of corporate
Limited advisory services
Haitong International Capital HERIHE EF - 100 BEER
Management Limited British Virgin US$1 Investment holding

Islands
BRARERERA Bk 5,000,000/7T - 60 RESRAARE
Haitong International Consultants Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Provision of financial
Limited* advisory services
Haitong International E-wealth RERLREE (E - 100 REER
Club Inc. British Virgin US$1 Investment holding

Islands
BRERNBERAR &% 300,000,002/ - 100 REER - BEEBR
Haitong International Finance Hong Kong (BEZHRELTR BHEE
Company Limited 100,700,001/87T) Investment holding, money
HK$300,000,002 lending and securities trading

(Non-voting deferred’
HK$100,700,001)

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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17 RHIBRRAZREREL, B

REZFIE (&)

17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due
from/to subsidiaries (continued)

BRITRE APRELZ
TMAEL ZEEE/ RABDH
AR AR R E EhgreR HE ik TEEK
Place of  Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount the Company
Name and operations  of paid-up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities
B eI EIRA R (RF) idm JR#500,0007T - 59 RAE SR IR
BRAR" Macau MOP500,000 Provision of support services
Haitong International Financial
Management Consultancy
{(Macau) Limited*
BRERHEERAR &% 100,000,000 T - 100 HELMELLEBRER
Haitong International Futures Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 Futures and options
Limited broking and trading
BRERBRERARAA" B 100,000 7T - 60 RAB R ARE
Haitong International Immigration Hong Kong HK$100,000 Provision of immigration
Consultants Limited* consultancy services
Haitong International Information EBRZAHE Ev - 100 BB
Systems Inc. British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
BREREAZRBERAR BE 11,000,000% 70 - 100 REEARBRERATR
Haitong International Information Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 Provision of information
Systems Limited technology solutions
Haitong International Information KBREUHE 1% - 100 REER
Technology Inc. British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
Haitong International Investment HERIHE EF - 100 BEER
Management Inc. British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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REBATZIREREW FENHE 17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due
NERZFRIE (&) from/to subsidiaries (continued)

BRTRE  FDRFEMGZ

EMRL, ZEEE/ RABDH
AR AR R E EhgreR H# ik TEEK
Place of  Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount the Company
Name and operations  of paid-up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities
BRERRELEERAR BB 47,000,0007 7T - 100 REBERECERRE
Haitong International Investment Hong Kong HK$47,000,000 Provision of asset and fund
Managers Limited management services
BRERREREAERA A £ 42,500,000/ 7T - 100 EAREKEE
Haitong International Investment Hong Kong HK$42,500,000 Securities broking and dealing
Services Limited
BRERCEERERARDA A" 0 28T - 100 FEREER
Haitong International Management Hong Kong HK$2 Under deregistration
Consultancy Limited*
BRERERREARAA BB 2B - 100 REER R
Haitong International Management Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of
Services Company Limited management services
Haitong International Net Inc. HERELHS 1% - 100 REER
British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
BREREERAR BE 1,000,000/ 7 - 100 [EEREHERT
Haitong International Net Limited* Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Under deregistration
BRERKBABRAR Bk 50,000,000/7T - 100 BHEE
Haitong International Nominees Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 Securities trading
Company Limited
Haitong International On-line Inc. KBRS ES - 100 BB
British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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17 RHIBRRAZREREL, B

REZFIE (&)

17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due

from/to subsidiaries (continued)

NEAER

Name

EMRL,
R E
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

BRITRE
ZEHE/
EhEreR
Nominal value of
issued share
capital/amount
of paid-up capital

FAREMGZ
REEAL
HE B

Percentage of equity

attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect

FERH

Principal activities

BRERETBLREERAR

Haitong International On-line

Services Limited

BRERHAERAF

Haitong International Research

Limited

BRERESERAT

Haitong International Securities

Company Limited

BERAREFREABRAA

Haitong International Securities

Nominees Limited

BEERAEEMEEERA A
Haitong International Wealth
Management Group Limited*

BRERAEEMERA R

Haitong International Wealth

Management Limited*

Haitong PE Investment
Management Ltd.

B
Hong Kong

0]
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

RERE

Cayman Islands

6,000,000/ T
HK$6,000,000

1,000,000 7
HK$1,000,000

1,500,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,500,000,000

27587

HK$2

3,500,000/ 7T
HK$3,500,000

1,240,000/8 7T

HK$1,240,000

10%7T
US$10

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

REETSRRE

Provision of electronic

financial services

REMERS

Provision of research services

BHELEREBUAR
EEIMNERE

Securities broking and
dealing and leveraged
foreign exchange trading

REREARKRE RS

Provision of nominee and

custodian services

EAREER

Under deregistration

RUMBRIABRBEAR SRR

IRERE A AR

Provision of financial planning
services and financial and
insurance products brokerage

REER

Investment management

BRBEBRESEBEBRAR © F#H2011
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17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due

from/to subsidiaries (continued)

BRITRE APRELZ
TMAEL ZEEE/ RABDH
AR AR R E EhEreR HE Gk TEEK
Place of  Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount the Company

Name and operations  of paid-up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities
IB Capital Management Limited** HeHs 50,000% 7T - 100 TEaE
Cayman Islands US$50,000 Inactive
BREMRRBRAF B 28T - 100 REER
iT Technology Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
iT Technology Holdings Inc. RERETHEE 1E7T _ 100 1REIRRR
British Virgin US$1 Investment holding

Islands
Ocean Pilot Investments Limited RERLHE (E - 100 REER
British Virgin US$1 Investment holding

Islands
ERBRAA 0 28T - 100 REZER
Prosper Ideal Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
ARBREZABR (BM) BARARE  PEARANE 2,000,000/ 7T - 100 RERE R ABERRE
( [HE]) HK$2,000,000 Provision of investment
People's consultancy services

Republic of

China ("PRC")
AERERAER (L8) BRAR? H 700,000 7T - 100 AR E AR R
PRC US$700,000 Provision of investment
consultancy services
RREMRE (RYN) FRA A h 10,000,0007%7T - 100 REBHRERS
PRC HK$10,000,000 Provision of software

development services

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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17

R ey

RHB AR ZREREY A HE
DR ZHE (#)

17

Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due

from/to subsidiaries (continued)

BERTRE  FDRFEMGZ

EMRL, ZEHE/ RABDH
AR AR R E B EhEReR H# Gk TEEK
Place of  Nominal value of Percentage of equity

incorporation/ issued share attributable to

registration capital/amount the Company
Name and operations  of paid-up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities
LEFES (RY) ARAR hE  AKR¥3,000,0007 - 60 MR R RS EERY
PRC RMB3,000,000 Provision of call centre and
system maintenance services
BRARRERA (RIN) H 2,000,0007 T - 100 TR B T R RS
BRAR PRC HK$2,000,000 Provision of investment
consultancy services
BRARRERNA (L&) H 2,000,000 T - 100 TR B R A RS
BRAER PRC HK$2,000,000 Provision of investment

consultancy services

* %

% %%

BREERERYTHEZERE - HER
RAGANE ERF &R TEEKEUE
85 B At 15 T 2 §100,000,000,000,000
BILATRAARFERERA °

RiEHE ARKMBEDEEZMAIIEEE R
EHER -

¢W *HE%MT% AR REAK BOREARIE B AT
RAMELR - ERRERED RIS
291AA1%%$M“%§’*&IH§AQ& BRI
B BT E B S L 0B A » 702011
F12A31H - BIHELEF HARTTK ©

FA - B AR BB BRI B MR
BaZM B AT » 20114128318 » Bt
BRBFELTN - ZMBRRER2012
£330 B #RH °

RENEEMAKL ©

szEEE“Eﬁﬂﬂ@_ AEIES Aol

AF] o WIEAZE LUK E SRSB4 =%
B AR EEFEREASEEZEEFE
#1% (20105128318 : 1%) °

BREHEEBR QA © F3H2011

* %

The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends,
attend or vote at general meetings and receive any surplus in
a return of capital, winding-up or otherwise in respect of the
first HK$100,000,000,000,000 thereof.

Entities registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the People’s Republic of China law.

During the year, all members of the respective subsidiaries
resolved to deregister and dissolve the subsidiaries, which
subject to the issue of the notice of no objection by the
Inland Revenue Department and publication of a notice of
the proposed deregistration in the Government Gazette
pursuant to the section 291AA of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. As at 31 December 2011, deregistration
procedures have not yet been completed.

During the year, all members of the subsidiary resolved to
deregister and dissolve the subsidiary. As at 31 December
2011, deregistration procedures have been completed and the
subsidiary will be dissolved on 30 March 2012.

Incorporated during the year.

Subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.
The aggregate net assets of subsidiaries not audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers approximates 1% (31 December
2010: 1%) of the Group’s net assets.
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18 AHEERE

18 Available-for-sale investments

AEH
Group
12A31H
31 December
20114 20104
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZAYE (ME) : At fair value (market value):
Bz ETRERE Listed equity investments
in Hong Kong - 19,393
A B K RE 2 FE E TR AR E Unlisted equity investment
(BREE) in Mainland China (Note) 11,250 12,625
11,250 32,018
FisE Note:

BEBREHRENCBIRRBARAT (4
%)) (—EHRBRFAIRR L HAR) ZBEA
SNERR - M TE T HRBHOMRT - DS
BETEESEEERERORMRAENSH
WL BRER - BRASNERD THRR LT
R - 8835214 5.2 R 58 E T HIRAIR
HATFETEA ETHERZ DSHERE -

The balance represents the promoter foreign shares of Changmao
Biochemical Engineering Company Limited (“Changmao”), a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the
Stock Exchange. Subject to certain restrictions on transfer and upon
obtaining the requisite approvals from, among other bodies, the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Stock Exchange,
the promoter foreign shares may be convertible into listed H shares
and shall thereafter carry the same rights and obligations of those
listed H shares. Its fair value is based on the quoted market prices
of the listed H shares.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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18 AHEERE (&) 18 Available-for-sale investments (continued)
Al SR E ST The movement in available-for-sale investments is

summarised as follows:

BZE HE
2011%F12H318 2010%12A31H
ItEE 1E181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REL,/ Hi4]) At the beginning of the year/period 32,018 33,075
HeE Disposal (17,976) (6,788)
HEREINEH ML Fair value changes transferred to
N EEE the investment revaluation reserve (2,792) 5,731
MNELR /B At the end of the year/period 11,250 32,018
19 BEZIHzEE 19 Held-to-maturity investments
AEH
Group
12A31H

31 December
20114 20104
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FELETEBES Unlisted debt securities 142,695 -
142,695 -

BRBEBRESEBEBRAR © F#H2011
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19 FEZRIHzZ2RE (&) 19 Held-to-maturity investments (continued)
BAEZRM GBS EHBamT The movement in held-to-maturity investments is

summarised as follow:

BZE HE

2011%F12H318 2010%12A31H

LFE 1E181E A

For the For the

year ended 18 months ended

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

FET FHIT

HK$°000 HK$'000

REY B4 At the beginning of the year/period - -

NE Additions 142,481 -

5y Amortization 214 _

R HAR At the end of the year/period 142,695 =
R201ME12H318 - BHEZEIBHZRERN As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of the held-to-

ANY{EXA131,508,000/8 7T © maturity investments was approximately HK$131,508,000.
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20 FEMNRIE - RERHEHMEWKRE 20 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
rEE FAH
Group Company
12A31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
20115 2010 20114 20104
2011 2010 2011 2010
THERT FET THERT THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TBF0E - e M EA Prepayments, deposits and

FEYBRIA other receivables 119,913 133,600 8,527 5,994
EEMERES Unlisted debt securities 51,807 = - -
171,720 133,600 8,527 5,994

RIETREN R Less non-current portion:

— ELETEKES - unlisted debt securities (51,807) = - -
mENED D Current portion 119,913 133,600 8,527 5,994
R2011F128318 © ELTMEBIEHFHAQ As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of unlisted debt
FELA51,807,0008 7T ° securities was approximately HK$51,807,000.
EREEADRE © None of the balances are considered as impaired.

21 BTEFEZER 21 Advances to customers
AEH
Group
12A31H
31 December

20114 20104
2011 2010
F&ET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AERERFEZER Loans to margin clients 3,445,404 4,382,700
S R E B Less: Impairment allowance (7,111) (7.111)
3,438,293 4,375,589

BRBEBRESEBEBRAR © F#H2011
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21 Advances to customers (continued)

(a)

The movements in impairment allowance of advances
to customers, all assessed individually, are as follows:

BZE HE
20115128318 2010F12A31H
LFE 11818 A

For the For the

year ended 18 months ended

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

FET FAET

HK$°000 HK$'000

REX /¥ At the beginning of the year/period 7111 7,667
MEE2BREZEPER  Write-off of fully impaired advances

to customers - (556)

RELR /B At the end of the year/period 7111 7111

BYAREFPZBMERE  HIREA
SERAZEHRZTEMEMET -

REMETHREFP ZEFRHERCE
ERBAHERMETR - XEER
—RERBARMNIBE - UIEBEER
ERmERE THRER - HBaf
MR BB B SEHEaA - m
BEPRBHZER

72011412 A318 - 3,438,000,0005%
7 (20104128318 : 4,376,000,000
BIL) 2R TREZBHRNERFRAAN
SEERZBLHEAERRMER -
K #r 5 ™ {E /A&15,937,000,0007% 7T
(20104612 A318 : 20,989,000,000/8
JT) °

The credit facility limits granted to margin clients are
determined by the discounted market value of the
collateral securities accepted by the Group.

The majority of the loans to margin clients are secured
by the underlying pledged securities and are interest
bearing. The Group maintains a list of approved stocks
for margin lending at a specified loan to collateral ratio.
Any excess in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call
which the customers have to make good the shortfall.

As at 31 December 2011, advances to customers
of HK$3,438 million (31 December 2010: HK$4,376
million) was secured by securities pledged by the
customers to the Group as collateral with undiscounted
market value of HK$15,937 million (31 December 2010:
HK$20,989 million).

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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21 HBTEFEZER (&) 21 Advances to customers (continued)
b) HTFTRFPZEFRZEERBHAGIT (b)  The credit risk profiles of the advances to customers

are as follows:

12A31H
31 December

20115 20104F

2011 2010

FET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

S £ 460 B sk R (B Neither past due nor impaired 3,012,285 4,049,732

= 280 BA{B £ (B Past due but not impaired 426,008 325,857

2RE Impaired 7,111 711

3,445,404 4,382,700
SEAEEHEBERENEFZER Advances to customers classified under past due
FREB S R BT BERSHERA Z but not impaired represent those receivables from
BEHIE - ZERBHARFRASE customers who have outstanding unfilled margin call
BN EMESEAER@ER position. The amount was secured by listed securities
A ¥ ;& ™ {E A3,952,000,000/8 7T pledged by the customer to the Group as collateral
(2010%12H31H :2,870,000,000 with undiscounted market value of HK$3,952 million
BIT) o I EXME21MEE - B (31 December 2010: HK$2,870 million). An impairment
SRR E R #7,111,000% 7T (20104 allowance of HK$7,111,000 (31 December 2010:
12A318 : 7,111,000%7T) ° HK$7111,000) has been provided as disclosed in note

21(a) above.

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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BFEFEZER (#) 21 Advances to customers (continued)

BTEFPZAMERZRESTET The ageing analysis of the overdue advances to customers

are as follows:

12A31H
31 December

201145 20104
2011 2010
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
11E A % B Overdue within 1 month 177,633 96,521
22 31E A% A Overdue between 2 to 3 months 155,120 160,430
B i@ 31E A i Hf Overdue over 3 months 93,255 68,906
426,008 325,857

FE U BR TR 22 Accounts receivable

AEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20114 20104
2011 2010
F&T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT RIBEE 2 RIRERFR Accounts receivable from:

— &P — Clients 52,741 51,757
— &0 RGP REEFT — Brokers, dealers and clearing house 874,987 872,513
— REBFIR LT 2 FARD — Subscription of new shares in IPO 53 =
— Hftb - Others 19,199 42,676
946,980 966,946
B R B Less: Impairment allowance - =
946,980 966,946

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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22 MEWERFX (&) 22 Accounts receivable (continued)
REEER » WEEREZEBIRR - BUL There is no impaired accounts receivable as of the balance
R BRES DATEAT - sheet dates. The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable
is as follows:
12A31H
31 December

20114 20104

2011 2010

FExT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BN EA=k 31E A Az Hf Current or overdue within 3 months 940,164 960,671

42618 A 7 8 Overdue between 4 and 6 months 2,659 2,791

721218 A @ Hf Overdue between 7 and 12 months 1,381 1,426

B iE 1 Y Overdue over 1 year 2,776 2,058

946,980 966,946
BEEHURERHREE - AEEEHREERK Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks
BRI R B i - AR EERRIRE to maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts
K- BEEESTHRNAHIE TEE receivable in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
EREAEEFEN EMRAFES B AKE are regularly monitored by management. The management
i BRI o ensure that the listed equity securities held by the Group is

sufficient to cover the overdue position.

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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23 Financial investments at fair value through profit

or loss
AEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
201145 20104
2011 2010
FExT FET
HK$000 HK$'000
BIEEE : Held for trading:
RN E - ImAYE Listed equity investments, at fair value:
—REB - in Hong Kong 6,889 89,185
ELHIRELES - IATFME :  Unlisted investment funds, at fair value:
— BN (BFEFR B ) —in overseas (including Mainland
China) 2,511 3,066
PTEBITA Derivative financial instruments
— H] - swap 8,324 =
17,724 92,251

R2011F128318 » (TERMKBEITEMNEZ R
R4 £30,000,000ZE 7T ©

REER  EERBRLBRAGAEEAGR
NOTEEE ZIREE °

The notional principal amounts of the derivative financial
instruments as at 31 December 2011 were US$30,000,000.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet

date is the carrying value of the derivative assets in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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24 REFFAZAE

AEBR R A WERRBULETERP - UF
BREFRREBEBIRFAEEZEFLFIE - K
SESHEEPRANBAFAEEARR
ZREBEBEEE NZAREREZRE  URE
HEREPRAZEMBRAIIHE LEE
ZERMEREN THBETE ZHERK
(FiE26) - REFRBAZREREFLHPE
FPIET RS RBME (FPHA) RAMAR
B MARE

25 BRI

24 Cash held on behalf of customers

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorized institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from
its normal course of business. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as cash held on behalf of customers under
the current assets section of the consolidated balance sheet
and recognised the corresponding accounts payable (note
25) to respective clients on the grounds that it is liable for
any loss or misappropriation of clients’” monies. The cash
held on behalf of customers is restricted and governed by
the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

25 Accounts payable
rEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20115 2010%F
2011 2010
THET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ATEEES ZEMRI Accounts payable to:

- &P — Clients 6,029,890 6,045,387
— R RPEREERT - Brokers, dealers and clearing house 14,199 6,307
— Hft - Others 800 799
6,044,889 6,052,493

REMD M ERFEHRANBEREEE - 5
TRNTEP ZRARI - ZFRFTIUE
PRIEF X BIZTETEBEAS MM KT
PzAREZE RAEBHREAREREZS
B REEREERP

BRBEKRESEBEERAR © FH2011

The maijority of the accounts payable balances is repayable
on demand except where certain accounts payable to clients
represent margin deposits received from clients for their
trading activities under normal course of business. Only
the excess amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated are repayable on demand.
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PR BRK (A1) 25

E INEEERRNERABNRE
A WHEE RN o

baiia
F‘i i
U)Zr)ﬁzg

R2011F12A318 ' BREN TRFE 2R
$20.001% (20105128318 : 0.001%) 5t
BAN - BT EMERRI TGS o

B FREPE ZERAMBIETHNRRAEER
=5 B8R P /5 204,992,026,0005 7 (20104512
A318 : 5,158,603,0007 7T ) ZJ?EH*”
IRFERREBHERZEEBRA
BRATHREEMREMBER ST %:
FRPE 2 B 3IE + & £ /A575,183,000/%8 7T
(2010412 A31 8 : 592,514,000/ 7T) °

HAtb P BRI FERT K 26
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Accounts payable (continued)

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for
payments immediately within the credit period. There is no
overdue accounts payable balance as of the balance sheet
dates.

Except for the accounts payable to clients which bear
interest at 0.001% as at 31 December 2011 (31 December
2010: 0.001%), all the accounts payable are non-interest
bearing.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables
placed in trust accounts with authorised institutions of
HK$4,992,026,000 (31 December 2010: HK$5,158,603,000),
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited,
Stock Exchange Options Clearing House and other futures
dealers totaling HK$575,183,000 (31 December 2010:
HK$592,514,000).

Other payables and accruals

HibfEBRFN R B8  Other payable and accruals

r5E NN
Group Company
12A31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
2015 20104 20115 20104
2011 2010 2011 2010
FTHET TR THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
102,345 136,792 13,814 39,681

HAi MR AT B RAR

Other payables are non-interest bearing and are repayable
within one year.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011

215



216

B RS R M

Notes to Financial Statements

27 EXRHEMEE

27 Loans and other borrowings

rEE NN
Group Company
12A31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
20114 20104 20114 20104
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FHET FTERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERBE Current Liabilities
BEREE : Secured borrowing:
RITiE L (Fif5E(), (b)) Bank overdrafts (note (a), (b)) - 13,892 - =

RITEF (P FE( b) (C ) Bank loans (note (b),(c))

648,000 1,421,000 - =

BEEREE Unsecured borrowing:
RITEK (ffﬁuf(c)) Bank loans (note (c)) 961,325 799,375 611,325 749,375
HME (B3 (c), Other loans (note (c), note 34)
BisE34) 85,200 740,000 85,200 640,000
1,694,525 2,974,267 696,525 1,389,375

() AEMRTEACBREE

(b) R 173 X & iR 17 B 5648,000,00075
JC (2010912 A31H : 1,435,000,000
BIL) DUAREBEERGTEFPER
(£f & F A& T) 2,104,000,0007 7T
(2010412 A31H : 3,252,000,000/8
7L) 2B EmIEA 2 WG EE
ﬁ o

() MITERMHEMEREREREER
RIFEREE -

REEFMBRITEBEYREBBEITRER
BI04 R R0.55%F1.75% <2o1o¢12ﬁ
318 : HARITEFEF S INFEF %0.55%
21%) 58 -

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011

(@)  The secured bank overdrafts are repayable on demand.

(b) Bank overdrafts and bank loans of HK$648 million
(31 December 2010: HK$1,435 million) are secured
by the listed shares held by the Group as security for
advances to customers (with the customers’ consent)
of HK$2,104 million (31 December 2010: HK$3,252
million).

(c) Bank loans and other loans are repayable on demand
or within 1 year.

All the Group's bank borrowings bear interest at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 0.55 % to 1.75% per
annum (31 December 2010: HIBOR plus 0.55% to 1% per
annum).
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28 EEBEELEE B 28 Deferred tax assets/liabilities
BB AT SR EAT 18 & 2= B RN B R 1E Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
BEKE  MELEMBRY RE— B B# legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
B - AIRIRERIEE E R A E G A - current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
FERFAEEEERE - TSR EFREEER relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts,
BEXRAFIE determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.
AEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20115 2010%F
2011 2010
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
S Z 218 B & B Deferred tax assets to be settled
ZIEETTIIEE E after more than 12 months 2,714 2,343
HEZ 218 A& ER Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
ZIEERIAEAE after more than 12 months (24,726) (19,832)
(22,012) (17,489)

MR20114 K2010512831H » AR 7 I &
EREXEERBEENAE -

The Company does not have any significant deferred tax

assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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28 EEMEBEELE A (&) 28 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)
REBRECERBEEERBERFEAZEE) The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the
(W E MK HR — R 5l A E A 2 4 Group during the year, without taking into consideration the
) T offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as

follows:
EEREEE — ~£H Deferred tax assets — Group
IERITERE HIEEIE &5t

Accelerated
depreciation

allowances Tax losses Total
T AT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
720097818 At 1 July 2009 4,465 7657 12,122
HIRRGEzx  Deferred tax charged to
kg 2 B AEFT IE the consolidated income
(FF5E9) statement during the period
(note 9) (3,580) (5,073) (8,653)

720104128318 At 31 December 2010 and
N20111 818 1 January 2011 885 2,584 3,469
FARNEEUEER A Deferred tax (charged)/
(1), Rz credited to the consolidated
RIETTE (Mi3F9)  income statement during
the year (note 9) (270) 366 96

72011412 H31H At 31 December 2011 615 2,950 3,565

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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28 EEBIBEE &6 (#) 28 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)
EEREASE - A58 Deferred tax liabilities - Group
METERE

Accelerated
depreciation
allowances

T
HK$'000
20097 H1H At 1 July 2009 15,731
U B B B A =) Acquisition of subsidiaries 420
AR A W R NG Deferred tax charged to the consolidated income
ZIEFEREIA (MIE9) statement during the period (note 9) 5,227
®2010512A318 At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011
K201 E1 A1 H 21,378
FRREREE WS R AR Deferred tax charged to the consolidated income
ZIRERIA (K15E9) statement during the year (note 9) 4,199
M2011%12H31H At 31 December 2011 25,577
RERELERBEEE Unrecognised deferred tax assets
BRI A ZE T RS S B BAR Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carryforward
RIE R R A B IR ML A4 8 2 TR E 1B I to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
TERR o ANES BN 5Kt 1] 45 85 DAHK 85 R 2R B AR through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group
TR U A 2 &5 18 49150,000,0007% 7T (20104 did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately
128318 : 134,000,000/ 70) & R & & 7 HK$25 million (31 December 2010: HK$22 million) in respect
TH & EE#725,000,000/ 7T (2010512 H318 of losses amounting to approximately HK$150 million
22,000,000/ 7T) © 5% % %t 18 &5 18 I £ & (31 December 2010: HK$134 million) that can be carried
HEf - forward against future taxable income. These tax losses

have no expiry date.
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29 BRA& 29 Share capital
12A31H
31 December
20114 20104
2011 2010
FExT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ETEREA Authorised:
2,000,000,000/% 2,000,000,000 (31 December 2010:
(2010512 A318 : 2,000,000,000) ordinary shares of
2,000,000,0000% ) HK$0.10 each
B EEO0.108 T2 Tk 200,000 200,000
BEIT R ¢ Issued and fully paid:
915,342,706/% 915,342,706 (31 December 2010:
(2010512 A318 : 715,032,706) ordinary shares of
715,032,7060% ) HK$0.10 each
SRR EEO0.108 T 2 L @Ak
91,534 71,503

EEITIRAEBHAT ¢ The movements in issued share capital were as follows:
BERTROEE BEITRA
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
T
HK$'000
R2009%7A1H As at 1 July 2009 706,448,228 70,645
17 {50 i AR A T 3517 /O 3T A% New shares issued due to exercise of
(KfsE(a)) share options (note (a)) 1,740,225 174
BEITUARR M EBE S (MfsE(b)) Scrip dividends issued (note (b)) 6,844,253 634
7201012 H31H As at 31 December 2010 715,032,706 71,503
R2011F1A81H As at 1 January 2011 715,032,706 71,503
A 1750 B AR A T 2217 A 3T AR New shares issued due to exercise of
(KizE(a)) share options (note (a)) 310,000 31
HE&E R bR RIEER New shares issued due to capitalization
mEEITH IR D (MIsE(c)) of intercompany loans (note (c)) 200,000,000 20,000
201112 A31H As at 31 December 2011 915,342,706 91,534

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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(a)

HZ=2011F128318 LEFE » 310,000
% (3 Z=2010%12A318H 1H18f@
A :1,740,225(7) BEREE R B8R
4.8547% JT (B, 220109128318 1k
1818 A : & /%5.874/8 7t & & 1%5.879
BIT) ZRBEREITE - BEUAERE
1,504,7407% 7T (B £201012H31H
1E1818 A :10,223,0008 JT) % 17
310,0000% (& =£20106F12A8318 1t
1818 A : 1,740,225/%) SREEO. 178
TCZFTE AR o

MR2009F 12 A1 BRI 2 REAF ARG
£ RRBBRREAEEABRR BIEE
AR & R B R HRRR B G ARSIl -
201091 A15H -+ 1,246,8600% A% 17 #&
AR B AT o

R2010F8 10 RIT 2 EEE &
F - EBFRBHEURRESR (RS
HIERE) EIRE NP HRE SRS
fili » 22010411 A10H - 5,597,393f%
AR FE AR AR B 7 N EEAT ©

MR201146H238 « A% E 5 i E
BIERER AT (RARZEEZERA
7)) Rl —IBERER b o Bt
FBRBIERBRATBRAEAEE
M201166H238 2 BN EENA A
B 850,000,000/ 7T E ALY 5 = A
T Hz4.25% 7T 2 (B 1% 7R 85200,000,000
Rt - REIHMIERCERNMEERE
% 1E201158H8H £ 17 2 A2 Al X
REFRAGELSE  MAEBRKRGER
201158 16 HE1T © FTEEAE 2 iR 3
1T AN 493,775,000/ 7T °
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29 Share capital (continued)

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 310,000
(18 months ended 31 December 2010: 1,740,225)
share options were exercised at subscription price of
HK$4.854 per share (18 months ended 31 December
2010: at subscription prices from HK$5.874 per
share to HK$5.879 per share), resulting in the issue
of 310,000 (18 months ended 31 December 2010:
1,740,225) new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each for a
total consideration of HK$1,504,740 (18 months ended
31 December 2010: HK$10,223,000).

At the annual general meeting held on 1 December
2009, the shareholders of the Company have approved
a final dividend of HK8 cents per share in cash with
a scrip option. 1,246,860 shares were issued on
15 January 2010 in scrip form.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on
19 August 2010, the directors resolved to declare a
second interim dividend of HK6 cents per share in
scrip form with a cash option. 5,597,393 shares were
issued on 10 November 2010 in scrip form.

On 23 June 2011, the Group entered into a loan
capitalisation agreement with Haitong International
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding company of
the Company. Pursuant to the agreement, Haitong
International Holdings Limited subscribed 200,000,000
shares at HK$4.25 per share by way of capitalisation
of HK$850,000,000 intercompany loans due from
the Group as at 23 June 2011. The capitalisation of
intercompany loans was subsequently approved
in a special general meeting of the Company held
on 8 August 2011 and the shares were issued on
16 August 2011. Share issuing costs of approximately
HK$3,775,000 was incurred.
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30 HERRESTE

R2002F8 23R » AR AR AL ERA —
TRfENR S ([2002F BB ARSI -

20024 FRRHEE 812 X EMABERE £
SRR SR HELT

AR FERAN2002F BT &) - §ERS]

B RE B2 B TUUER AR A REM
BRAtE2RERRBR FERE2EE
AR ZMA/ARBEBHENE I RE
A R 2 AR » 1RIE2002F BT 8] - BB
PR AT T AR 2 B sl ELAE (AT B 2 B sl i
RAZEMEBET FITEENIENITE
=o

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011

30 Share option scheme

On 23 August 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002
Share Option Scheme”).

A summary of the principal terms of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules,
is set out as follows:

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was adopted for the
purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented
employees to strive towards long term performance targets
set by the Company and its subsidiaries and at the same
time allowing the participants to enjoy the results of the
Company attained through their effort and contribution.
Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, options may be
granted to any full time employees, executive and non-
executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or associates.
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BRES ()

RAE2002F B AR M AT &) R AN A RME( H Ab i
WRAERTEIE TR 2 AR RS TIE
kel FEITZR=2RHEE - aETSE
FRIBANA BRI RN2002F BB AEAT EI B HIT
BT B8 210% ([FHEIEEREE]) @
AN B AT R AR BR K & 5K AR SR BE 58 AT &
RERTE - BARRRESIRE2002F F
FT &I R AN B ] A B AR AT 81 AT 3
BB E=RHEE  TEBBEAQR
RERMRIEE A SHEE I S RERE 2
ARAFBEBETRANI0% - REFEHEEE
2 10%PREERF - 2 AT E AR 20026 FE iR
FTEI R AR B E A AR T B 2 B8
B (BIEMAITE B BEXBEE
T BERE) TEHEERN - BEBERR
LA FRTitiRE - iR 1E20024F B AR HE R 2 2 AR
NAME A E AR T S B R B BRI THE
ZEREEERBITE Bt T2
ERRHEE - TRBRAARTREET
BRI HBE230% (kK LR BHZRE B
D) o B20118F12831H - 1BIE2002F 8
ARt RT 8 AT (L3847 2 B 1D 48 80 4571,503,270
B (AR EIRE BHEBRITRALT7.81% °
R H520024F f AR A 51 & K A A &) F ] B A
BRESERTSER2HEE 2 BERE (B2
RBEITERERITE ZBRE) BiITEME
BORBTETZBROZEEEE - REWH
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Share option scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
2002 Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
but the Company may seek approval of its shareholders at
general meetings to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit,
save that the maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted by directors of the Company
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval by the shareholders of the Company at general
meetings where such limit is refreshed. Options previously
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised options)
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10%
limit as refreshed. Notwithstanding the aforesaid in this
paragraph, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may
be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time. As at 31 December
2011, the total number of shares available for issue under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme was 71,503,270 shares,
which represented approximately 7.81% of the issued share
capital of the Company at that day. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of the Company’s shares in issue. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company at a general meeting.
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BRES ()

AARBES TBTRABRTEZRRH
HEBEA LR OBERE  ASAEET
FERITEFE - I AARRRERRR
HBUIFATEFSIEEABRALRIE
Al FEACHE - anPMERN2ME B B A - @R
EEFHETREREZZZAARREET
B fn 8 820.1% » HARE (RA QA
REEERR THBREEZE 2B ZRmE
%) #8385,000,000/8 7T * EFLEFEAR
AR RERRASHAE

BREZERATREDBERERL B M
FH30R NEMZ EX) - BABAIER A
REVET - BEREZITERRESETE
EREBRE Z6EAMRRE - ZBRER
RIR R BB ST 0 RTTE - BB

BEHHAEH AR EETERFRG S
1F o PTARIR2002F M I i AT I3 2 BB AX
B E6EAFEMIR -

BREZTEERESET - THRIRTI
BHEZRSHE  ((RAFRNNEL B
KRR P HRERRWHE : (IAR
AR R EE 2L A HARTER 5 AR
P BRERARZ FHRHE - RiiAR
Al in < E1E °
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Share option scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholders of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue at the date
on which such grant is proposed by the directors or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company's shares at the date on which such grant is
proposed by the directors) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval
in advance at a general meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 30 days from the date of the offer upon payment
of a consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and such period shall commence not earlier than
6 months from the date of grant of the options and expire
not later than 10 years after the date of grant of the options.
The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.
All share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme are
subject to a 6-month vesting period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’'s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
5 trading days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders" meetings.
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BRESTE (#) 30 Share option scheme (continued)
2002 FERRBERT BI R A QN Al IR K2R & The 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
BRERNE AR BRFTERES for a period of 10 years commencing from the date on which
105 © #18201298 A22 B & ° it is conditionally adopted by resolution of the Company at a
general meeting and will expire on 22 August 2012.
2002 BE AR fE R &I N 2 M AR TR BB ARAE R Movements of share options outstanding under the 2002
FRNHRNEEBNT Share Option Scheme during the year/period are as follows:
Bit20115F12A31R #1E2010612A31H
LEE 1E18f8 A
For the year ended For the 18 months ended
31 December 2011 31 December 2010
hiREFS I3
TEE BREZE IEE  BBRESA
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise = Number of Exercise Number of
Price options price options
BT BT
B T B Fn
HKS$ per HK$ per
share ‘000 share ‘000
R2011E1818 At 1 January 2011/1 July 2009
2009F7A1H 5.26 54,807 5.88 26,693
E£R /S HRRH Granted during the year/period - - 4.85 33,480
FRN/ HRHE Adjusted during the year/period - - 5.24 (46)
F£R/ B\RITE Exercised during the year/period 4.85 (310) 5.87 (1,740)
FR/HAR Forfeited during the year/period 5.34 (11,281) 5.70 (3,580)
M20118E12A318 / At 31 December 2011/
201012 A31H 31 December 2010 5.25 43,216 5.26 54,807
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FR - BITEERERITE BH 2 hniEF
fi% & £5.05/% 7t (i 2201012 H31H It

18fE A : 6.93%7T) °

REEE BRTTRBARE 2 1TE RITEMD

™~

Share option scheme (continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$5.05
(18 months ended 31 December 2010: HK$6.93).

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at that balance sheet date are as
follows:

2011%12831H
31 December 2011

BREZE TEE 1TfEHA
Number of options Exercise price' Exercise period
¥4 BRET
‘000 HKS$ per share
16,570 5.879 20086 H1H£2016F5H31H
1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016
26,646 4.854 20113 HA3H £2019F3H2H
3 March 2011 to 2 March 2019
43,216
201012 A31H
31 December 2010
RS R 1IfEE 1TEHA
Number of options Exercise price’ Exercise period
T3 BRAETT
‘000 HK$ per share
21,956 5.879 20086 H1H=2016%F5H31H
1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016
32,851 4.854 20113 H3H E£2019F3H2H
3 March 2011 to 2 March 2019
54,807

' Bz TEENRER - IR S AR

BATHA R RIIA Z AR

=’ o
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The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights, scrip dividend or bonus issues,
or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.
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IRE A IR TR AR o RE BB E—H
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Share option scheme (continued)

No new share options were granted during the year. During
the year, the Group recognised a share option expense
of HK$6,396,000 (18 months ended 31 December 2010:
HK$12,791,000) in relation to certain share options granted
in prior period.

The 310,000 (31 December 2010: 1,740,225) share options
exercised during the current year resulted in the issue of
310,000 (31 December 2010: 1,740,225) ordinary shares
of the Company and new share capital of HK$31,000
(31 December 2010: HK$174,023) and share premium of
HK$1,473,740 (31 December 2010: HK$10,048,559) (before
issue expenses), as further detailed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 43,215,758
(31 December 2010: 54,806,688) share options outstanding
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 4.72% (31 December 2010: 7.66%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 43,215,758 (31 December 2010: 54,806,688) additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$4,321,576 (31 December 2010: HK$5,480,669) and
share premium of HK$222,431,316 (31 December 2010:
HK$283,055,453) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 43,215,758 (31 December
2010: 54,806,688) share options outstanding under the 2002
Share Option Scheme, which represents approximately
4.72% (31 December 2010: 7.66%) of the Company's shares
in issue at that date.
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31 R

AEBEREAZSBEIERANERE KL E—H
B2 2%  ERGAEREBHRES -

ARBRFBEAZ B RERANERE K E—H

31 Reserves
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current year and prior period are presented in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The amounts of the Company's reserves and the

Mz g : movements therein for the current year and prior period are
as follows:
RAF] Company
kOREE  BRERE RARERE N REER At
Share Share Capital
premium option  redemption  Contributed Retained
account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
T T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1200946A30R At 30 June 2009 894,677 14,484 5,102 2697 5,806 922,766
SRR - B0 Profit for the period - note 10 - - - - 176,648 176,648
BERG - BRESE  Issue of new shares - share options
scheme 11,337 (1,288 = - - 10,049
RTES z ik New share options granted to employees
- HiE30 - note 30 - 12,791 - - - 12,791
RPN ESG 2009 final and 2010 first and second
Z2009ERERE R interim dividend declared and settled
010EE—1R in shares and cash - note 11
FTRPHRE - K1 39,842 - - - (113,434) (73,592)
FUR20105 RERE — M1 Proposed final 2010 dividend - note 11 - - - - (57,203) (57,20)
B RE Share options lapsed 1,616 1,616) - = = =
R2010%128318 At 31 December 2010 94747 2,371 5,102 2,697 11,817 991,459
EHRh - E38KL  Issue of new shares - loan capitalisation
- Mtk29 - note 29 825,025 - - - - 825,025
ERgh - M0 Profit for the year - note 10 - - - - 119,930 119,930
BFESZHBRIE - 530 New share options granted to employees
- note 30 - 6,396 - - - 6,396
BOHRD - BREE  Issue of new shares - share options
- Mi30 scheme - note 30 1,661 (178) - - - 1473
ERENBEX 220115 2011 interim dividend declared and setled
RS - K in cash - note 11 - - - - (54,920) (54,920)
BR201EREIRE — MEE11 Proposed final 2011 dividend - note 11 - - - - (18.307) (18.307)
RERI Share options lapsed 6,306 6,306) = - - -
R011£128318 At 31 December 2011 1,780,454 2,283 5,102 2697 5850 1,871,056

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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Reserves (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
also arose in 1996 as a result of the group reorganisation in
preparation for the listing of the Company and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the share
capital issued by the Company and the aggregate net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the Company may make distributions to its members out of
the contributed surplus provided certain conditions are met.

The share option reserve of the Group and the Company
comprises the fair value of share options granted which are
yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in note 2.16 to
the consolidated financial statements. The amount will be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are expired or forfeited.

Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases certain of its office properties and
computer equipment under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from
6 months to 6 years, and those for computer equipment for
terms of 3 to 4 years.

At 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company had
total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

A AT
Group Company
12H31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
2015 20104 20115 20105
2011 2010 2011 2010
FHET THT FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
156 R Within one year 83,432 83,141 315 903
FE2EFEHF In the second to fifth years,
(PREEME) inclusive 33,642 97410 - 301
117,074 180,551 315 1,204
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33 HtRiE

Bk EXPMRES2FF il < B E ARSI - A&
BRNEE B ZAENT

33 Other commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in

note 32 above, the Group had the following commitments at

the balance sheet date:

REE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20115 20104
2011 2010
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETAY - [BREE - Contracted, but not provided for:
EE R Computer equipment 480 10,764

3 BEEALRS

(@ KBRERAMBHRRZELMEBNAEF

Mo R GREHSTEIN  NREEBRSE
NEBEATZBEEZX SR m
T

i) MAEAFEA AEEESESAAFZ
EEZRARSBEREBEZERER
NRREEERER - R20114F
12A318 * RARZ REEHEH
485,200,000/ 7T (201012 A
318 : 640,000,000 7T) ° 7% 18
BEARERZF B RBOS%E
1.55% (201012 A318 :
1.10%%£1.28%) ° F A E {1 F
B #7,167,381% 7T (B £2010
#12A31H 1E18fE A : 988,000
BIT) °

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011

34 Related party transactions

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with related

parties during the year:

(i)

During the year, the Group obtained an
unsecured loan from Haitong International
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding
company of the Company. As at 31 December
2011, the Company had outstanding balance
of HK$85,200,000 (31 December 2010:
HK$640,000,000). The unsecured loan is
chargeable at an interest rate of 0.8% to 1.55%
per annum (31 December 2010: 1.10% to 1.28%
per annum). Interest expense of HK$7 167,381
was paid during the year (18 months ended
31 December 2010: HK$988,000).
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20116 A23B &R ARIHE
3£850,000,0007% 7T LA & A (b &)
F R AFH4. 2678 T 2 BI&REE
7N A &) 2.200,000,0008% B 15 °
ARIHER B EEREEE
201148 ASH BT 2 AR RIIRER
BRIASELE  mMERRKNE
R20114F8 816 H 31T -

RIBEARRREERLIERARE
BESFRMDERARGINLZ RS
BinE  EHERERAEEE
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BRER S  BFIAHBER
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34 Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

During the year, the Group signed a loan
capitalisation agreement with Haitong
International Holdings Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company. Pursuant
to the loan capitalisation agreement, Haitong
International Holdings Limited subscribed
200,000,000 shares of the Company at
HK$4.25 per share by way of capitalisation of
HK$850,000,000 intercompany loan owed by the
Group as at 23 June 2011. The capitalisation of
intercompany loans was subsequently approved
in a special general meeting convened on
8 August 2011 and the shares were issued on
16 August 2011.

Pursuant to a master services agreement
entered into between the Company and Haitong
Securities Co., Ltd., the ultimate holding
company of the Company, both parties have
agreed to provide services to the companies
of the Group or Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries. Services pursuant to the
master services agreement include brokerage
transactions, research transactions, investment
management and advisory services transactions,
seed injection or financing transactions,
corporate finance transactions, underwriting or
sub-underwriting commitments attributable to
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries,
and information technology support services.
The income and expenses from these services
amount to HK$187,333 (18 months ended 31
December 2010: HK$9,000) and HK$474,485 (18
months ended 31 December 2010: HK$275,000)
respectively for the year in accordance with the
terms of the master services agreement.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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3 BEALRE (#) 34 Related party transactions (continued)
(@ (&) (@)  (continued)

(iv) RAFA - REEBRRAARZ (ivi During the year, the Group received a
BEEERARSBBEBIERER management fee of HK$738,000 (18 months
NAREEEERERSEERS ended 31 December 2010: HK$Nil) on provision
i U BN 22 2 738,00078 T (B = of discretionary account management services
2010912 A31H LE18(@ A « £) - to Haitong International Holdings Limited, the
ZERZESAREEBIREAS immediate holding company of the Company.
2 EEFEAFNZES%FE - The fee is charged at 0.5% per annum on the net

asset value of the underlying investment portfolio
at the end of each month.

EXHIFEOEMWAFER  BEA TR The related party transactions disclosed in note (i)
SIER ER BB 14AAZFTEE 2 to (iv) above also constitute connected transactions
ERGIIGEBER S - or continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) AEEEXEEBASZHMN (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:
BZE HZE
2011%¥12831H 2010612H31H
LLFE 1E181E A
For the For the
year ended 18 months ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
FET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
CHIEBEA Short term employee benefits 37,616 58,742
R Post-employment benefits 153 239
ARG RE S5 <t 2 FR I8 Share-based payments 2,846 11,564
MEETEEIBAE 25 WA Total compensation paid to key
L management personnel 40,615 70,545
EHEF2HFMFBEH NGB ®RE Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note
BaE7 o 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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Maturity profile of assets and liabilities

An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and
liabilities of the Group analysed by the remaining year at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date is as

follows:
BREREER 3EASHAT st
Repayable on 3 months
demand or less Total
FET THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
2011128318 31 December 2011
BE Assets
BTIEEZEXR Advances to customers 3,438,293 - 3,438,293
REFEHE IS Cash held on behalf of
customers 1,954,196 3,037,830 4,992,026
RWERBITER Cash and bank balances 545,780 455,458 1,001,238
5,938,269 3,493,288 9,431,557
=L Liabilities
e & P R Account payables to clients
(TBEEMNLE4L ©  excluding payables to
R R EERT brokers, dealers and
2 FI8) clearing house 5,777,652 252,238 6,029,890
BERkEMEER Loans and other borrowings - 1,694,525 1,694,525
5,777,652 1,946,763 7,724,415
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35 BEEREBZIHEES @)

35 Maturity profile of assets and liabilities

(continued)
REREE 3E A AT FEE
Repayable on 3 months
demand or less Total
AT FTAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2010F12H31H 31 December 2010
BE Assets
BLTITREZER Advances to customers 4,375,589 - 4,375,589
RE=P#HFA 2SS  Cash held on behalf of
customers 2,711,586 2,447017 5,158,603
He NE1TEE Cash and bank balances 244,733 172,947 417680
7331,908 2,619,964 9,951,872
=L Liabilities
BN B PR Account payables to clients
(TBEFEEMNELE ©  excluding payables to
RS MEEERT brokers, dealers and
Z5RIE) clearing house 5,915,773 129,614 6,045,387
ERRHMEE Loans and other borrowings 113,892 2,860,375 2,974,267
6,029,665 2,989,989 9,019,654

36 RERESZHMBETR

FIERGEAEERBRNMBEERYBTA
B (BREFEEINHNE - RiEEARIEA
RYEFP2ER  BUIRRENERR - %
& Be - BERREMEE  HEERE
NFRIR) REBEMFRIAB K ATE
[AHEERE | R [RAFEFABE M
BIRE | AAFERHERRSN ©
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36 Financial instruments by category

All financial assets and financial liabilities (including held-
to-maturity investments, other receivables, advances to
customers, accounts receivable/payable, deposits, cash,
loans and other borrowings, other assets and payables) in
the consolidated balance sheet are carried at amortised cost
using effective interest method except for “available-for
sale investments” and “financial investments at fair value
through profit or loss” which are both carried at fair value.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
held-to-maturity investments, other receivables, financial
investments at fair value through profit or loss, advances to
customers, accounts receivable, accounts payable, cash and
bank balances and loans and other borrowings. Advances to
customers, accounts receivable and accounts payable mainly
arise from the Group's operations while cash and bank
balances and loans and other borrowings are to maintain
liquidity or to raise financing for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank deposits,
advances to customers, loans and other borrowings as well
as other interest-bearing accounts receivables and payables.

The Group's major interest-bearing asset is the advances to
customers, whose financing and interest rate risk exposure
are matched by the Group's loans and other borrowings.
Management actively monitors the Group’s net interest rate
exposure through setting limits on the level of mismatch
of interest rate repricing and duration gap and aims at
maintaining an interest rate spread, such that the Group is
always in a net interest-bearing asset position and derives
net interest income.

The Group's interest rate risk lies in fluctuations of HIBOR
or Hong Kong Dollar Best Lending Rate, as the Group's
interest-bearing assets and liabilities are mainly Hong Kong
dollar denominated.

All the interest bearing financial assets and liabilities are

subject to an interest re-pricing risk of 3 months or below.
There is no concentration of interest risk exposure.
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37 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 December 2011, if market interest rates at that
date had been 25 basis points (31 December 2010:
25 basis points) higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before taxation for the year would have
been HK$2,780,000 higher/lower (31 December 2010:
HK$6,620,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/
lower floating rate bank balances, advances to customers,
accounts receivables and other receivables, accounts
payable and, loans and other borrowings.

The Company'’s interest rate risk exposure is considered
insignificant.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency risk arises principally from its
leveraged foreign exchange business as well as the Group's
transactions denominated in currencies other than Hong
Kong dollars (“"HKD").

As of 31 December 2011, the Group has unhedged net short
position in foreign currency of US$10.9 million (net long
position of US$10.9 million). If US dollars strengthen against
all other foreign currency by 5%, the above unhedged
net position will result in a net gain of approximately
US$545,000 (equivalent to HK$4,236,000). The Group has
no significant unhedged net foreign currency position in
December 2010.

Apart from this foreign exchange exposure, the majority
of the Group’s and the Company’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in HKD, United States dollars (“USD") and
Renminbi (“RMB"). Exchange rates of HKD and USD have
remained relatively stable during the year.

As at 31 December 2011, if RMB strengthened/weakened
against HKD by 5% (2010: 5%) with all other variables
including tax rate being constant, profit before taxation for
the year would have been HK$26,783,000 (18 months ended
31 December 2010: HK$307,000) higher/lower. Profit is more
sensitive to movement in RMB against HKD in 2011 than
2010 because of purchase of RMB denominated financial
assets during the year.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The held-to-maturity investments, other receivables,
derivative financial instruments, advances to customers,
accounts and other receivables, cash and bank balances and
other assets represent the Group's major exposure to the
credit risk arising from the default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
financial assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Credit Committee of the Group has appointed a group of
authorised persons who are charged with the responsibility
of approving credit limit of each customer. The Committee
is responsible for approval of share acceptable for margin
lending, setting stock margin ratio for each approved share.
The approved share list is updated bimonthly, and will be
revised as and when deemed necessary by the Committee.
The Committee will prescribe from time to time lending
limits on individual share or on any individual customer and
his/her associates.

The Credit Control Department of the Group is responsible
for making margin calls to customers whose trades exceed
their respective limits. Any such excess is required to be
made good within two days for securities and the next day
for futures of the deficiency report. The deficiency report
will be monitored daily by the Group's finance director and
responsible officers. Failure to meet margin calls may result
in the liquidation of the customers’ positions.

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control
and sustain minimal exposure of credit risk to the Group
resulting from its advances to customers (margin loan), held-
to-maturity investments and other receivables, derivative
financial instruments and cash and bank balances based on
the following:

° Advances to customers (margin loan) are backed by
collateral. The Group only accepts collateral in the
form of cash and liquid stocks. Advances to customer
of neither past due nor impaired are fully secured by
liquid stocks (Note 21).
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37

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

° Held-to-maturity investments and other receivables
were issued by corporations and reputable large
commercial banks with credit rating of either the
issuers or the notes, of Ba3 or above issued by
Moody’s or BB— or above issued by Standard & Poor’s.
For instruments without credit rating, the Group
has undergone a detailed credit assessment review
process and closely monitor its creditworthiness.

° Derivative financial instruments were entered with a
reputable large commercial bank with credit rating of
A2 issued by Moody's.

o Majority of cash and balances with banks were
deposited in reputable large commercial banks with
credit rating of Baa3 or above issued by Moody's or
BBB+ or above issued by Standards & Poor’s.

For accounts and other receivables, approximately HK$113
million (31 December 2010: HK$76 million) was receivables
from clients arising from dealing in securities, which
normally had a delivery-against-payment settlement term
of 2 days. There is no concentration of credit risk with
respect to the receivables, as the Group has a large number
of clients who are internationally dispersed. Most of the
accounts and other receivables from clients with overdue
more than 30 days are fully secured by listed securities
with market value significantly higher than the carrying
amount. The ageing analysis of the advances to customers
and accounts receivable are included in note 21 and note
22 respectively.

Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing
house are placed with large international financial institutions
which are governed by regulators including Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"). The risk of
default in repayment is considered to be minimal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Other assets are mainly deposits placed with the regulators
which are considered to have minimum credit risk.

Other than the above, the Company's credit risk exposure
mainly represents the amounts due from subsidiaries. These
intercompany balances are considered to have minimum
credit risk.

Liquidity risk

A number of the Group’s activities are subject to various
statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed by the
Securities and Futures Commission in accordance with the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “HKSFO").
The Group has put in place monitoring system to ensure
that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its business
commitments and to comply with the relevant Financial
Resources Rules under the HKSFO.

As part of the measures to safeguard liquidity, the Group has
maintained substantial long term and other stand-by banking
facilities, diversifying the funding sources and spacing out
the maturity dates.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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37 HIXEREEZBNRBEE (#) 37 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
HRBEEER (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
AEBEARNRREE A 2 EAERED The maturity profile of the Group’s and Company’s financial
AIHARTRNFGTEZBIEEEEIT ¢ liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the

contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows:

REE Group
2011F12831H
31 December 2011
EEX DRA3EA 1ZE55F #Et
Less than 1to

On demand 3 months 5 Years Total

FTET TERT TER FEx

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERkHMEE Loans and other borrowings - 1,712,277 - 1,712,277

FERTRR R Accounts payable 5,792,651 252,238 - 6,044,889
ST AE B R0E & Financial liabilities included in

A TIEEE other payables and accruals 102,345 - - 102,345

5,894,996 1,964,515 - 7859511

201012 831H
31 December 2010
e Z sk LH31E A 1255 “BEr
Less than 1to

On demand 3 months 5 Years Total

FHAT FHTT FHET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERREMEE Loans and other borrowings 113,892 2,861,997 - 2,975,889

FERTBR R Accounts payable 5,922,879 129,614 - 6,052,493
sHAE B R ROE & Financial liabilities included in

st AV B6aE other payables and accruals 136,792 - - 136,792

6,173,563 2,991,611 - 9,165,174

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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37 HIXEREEZBNRBEE (#) 37 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

RBEEER (&) Liquidity risk (continued)

KT Company

2011%12831H
31 December 2011

EEk  DSW3fEA 1E55 gt
Less than 1to

On demand 3 months 5 Years Total

TET BT FERT TExT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EXRREMEE Loans and other borrowings - 714,043 - 714,043
ST AE Ath 5 3R0R K Financial liabilities included in

R F IR IS B E other payables and accruals 13,814 - - 13,814

AN NG Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,468,719 - - 1,468,719

1,482,533 714,043 - 2,196,576

2010124318
31 December 2010
EExk  DRIEA 18565 FE
Less than 1to

On demand 3 months 5 Years Total

FTAT FHT FHT TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERkEMEE Loans and other borrowings = 1,390,803 = 1,390,803
FTAEMERFIBR Financial liabilities included in

EErRIB IS B E other payables and accruals 39,681 = = 39,681

FERTHTB A B ZIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 756,097 - - 756,097

795,778 1,390,803 - 2,186,581

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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37

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
and derivative financial instruments decrease as a result
of changes in the levels of equity indices and the values of
individual investment. The Group is exposed to price risk
arising from individual equity investment and derivative
financial instruments classified as financial investment at fair
value through profit or loss and available-forsale investments
as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010. The
Group's equity investments are listed on the Hong Kong
stock exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date. Derivative financial instruments are
measured using valuation techniques commonly used in the
market.

Equity investments

The table below summarises the impact of increases in the
Hong Kong Hang Seng Index on the equity’s profit before
taxation for the year and on the investment revaluation
reserve. The analysis is based on the assumption that the
equity index had changed by 10% with all other variables
held constant and all the equity instruments move according
to the historical correlation with the index.

HBRBLAD HREEM
BNz E EEzxE

Impact on the
investment
revaluation

Impact on profit reserve in
ERELEEY Hong Kong Hang Seng Index before taxation equity
T FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
2011%12H31H 31 December 2011
#EHN10% Increase by 10% 435 702
A 10% Decrease by 10% (435) (702)
2010£12H31H 31 December 2010
HIN10% Increase by 10% 9,008 2,796
WA10% Decrease by 10% (9,008) (2,796)

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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Notes to Financial Statements

37 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Price risk (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments depends
on the return of an underlying investment portfolio. Should
the fair value of the underlying investment portfolio increase
by 1%, the fair value of the derivative will increase by around
HK$2 million.

Fair value of financial instruments

Apart from the financial investments at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale investments, which
are carried at fair value, the carrying amounts of all other
financial assets and liabilities approximated their fair value.

The fair value hierarchy for the financial investments at fair
value through profit or loss and available-forsale investments
is analysed as follows:

Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques
based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques
are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs
reflect market data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s market
assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the
following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities. This level includes listed
equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges (for
example, Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and exchanges traded
derivatives like futures (for example, Nasdag, S&P 500).

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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37

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC derivative
contracts, traded loans and issued structured debts. The
sources of input parameters like HIBOR vyield curve or
counterparty credit risk are Bloomberg and Reuters.

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level
includes equity investments and debt instruments with
significant unobservable components.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data
when available. The Group considers relevant and observable
market prices in its valuations where possible.

An analysis of the Group's financial assets measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are as

follows:
REH Group
FE1R B2} E3MR Mt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
THET TAERT TER FTER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2011FE12831H 31 December 2011
At ERE Available-for-sale investments - 11,250 - 11,250
BRATEFABRZELZ Financial investments at fair value
B A through profit or loss 6,889 10,835 - 17,724

BRBERESEBEBRAR © FH2011
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37 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

REE (4F) Group (continued)
ENES B2 3 HBET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHETT FHTT FHETT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2010%F12831H 31 December 2010
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments 19,393 12,625 - 32,018
BAFEFABRYZ Financial investments at fair value
SR E through profit or loss 89,185 3,066 - 92,251

RE /BN - RNEE Y SR E3RM BT

>~

EXEE

BEREAKRBZBA - AEEEAEREZH
ZHBERREREERMFELE RERR
RBZEARLLE UG HEBHTREEMR
BRI R E(E -

AREEREEERGZ2CERHEARRE
WHEMEL AR - REFNARELRE -
AEEREABIKN TRRZBEFKE - R
BERTERRREITHN - NFR - AHE
LB R - B RAEFEREAEE -

The Group did not have any level 3 financial instruments
during the year/period.

Capital management

The capital represents the Group’s equity. The primary
objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
year.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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37

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures dealings and broking, corporate
finance and advisory, nominee and custodian services,
leveraged foreign exchange trading, and fund management,
which are regulated entities under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC”) and subject to the
respective minimum liquid capital requirements from
HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million as at 31 December 2011 and
31 December 2010.

During the year, the subsidiaries of the Group, which are
regulated by SFC, complied with all the minimum capital
requirement.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total borrowings divided by the total shareholders’
equity. Total borrowings include interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings. Total shareholders’ equity comprises all
components of equity attributable to the equity holders. The
Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable
level. The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates were

as follows:

rEE Group
20115 20104F
12431H 12431 H
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
F& T TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE Total borrowings 1,694,525 2,974,267
MR R 42 5E Total shareholders’ equity 3,054,588 2,170,580
BEARBELE Gearing ratio 55% 137%
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The decrease in gearing ratio as at 31 December 2011 is
resulted from the loan capitalisation of the intercompany
loan with Haitong International Holdings Limited, the
immediate holding company of the Company. Details of the
loan capitalisation has been disclosed in note 29(c).

Immediate holding company and ultimate
holding company

Haitong International Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, and Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.,
a company incorporated in the People's Republic of China,
are the immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company respectively.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of
directors on 13 March 2012.
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Ten Years Financial Summary

HZ2011F12H31HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2009F 2008F 20038
TH1RZ 1A1BE 4R1RE
WNE 20105 2009F 2007F 2006F 2005F 2048 20038 20038 2002F 2015
128318 12A318 6A308 128310 12A310 12A310 12A310 12A318 3A318 3A318 3A318
1/7/2009- 1/1/2008- 1/4/2003-
31112/201m 317122010 30/6/2009  31/12/2007  31/12/2006 311122005 31/12/2004  31/12/2003 31/3/2003 31132002 31/3/2001
TEn Th Th Thr Thr T T TH T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E7 | RESULTS
WA Revenue 959,157 1,459,935 1,084,604 1,465,213 726913 390,781 356,776 245,258 213,719 270,669 403849
wewn/ (R OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS) 179,058 396,827 202,058 582,362 197689 68,663 71919 45,881 (40,092) (121,614) 99,243
EHBEATREREHER  Share of profits/(losses) of an associate
ikl / (Bi8) and jointly-controlled entities - 1718 6324 198 % 33 1,456 () (372) 48 365
BHEER/ (B8 PROFIT/LOSS) BEFORE TAX 179,08 398,545 208,382 582,560 197941 68,998 79,375 45871 (40,464) (121,662) 99,608
A (F%) /A Tax (charge)/credit (25,973) 53,386) (20,054) (92,329) (22,971) (6,040) (9,09) (4,297) 1,033 15,860 2,601
R/ BREA/ (BB  PROFIT/LOSS) FORTHE
YEAR/PERIOD 153,085 345,159 188,328 490,231 174,970 62,958 70,280 41,580 (39,431) (105,802) 102,209
DT AL - ATTRIBUTABLETO:
KARRABEA Equity holders of the Company 153,204 345,79 188974 484,847 172,325 62,958 70,280 41,580 (39.431) (105,802) 103,048
SR Non-controling Interests (19) (636) (646) 5384 2645 - - - - - 839)
153,085 345,159 188,328 490,231 174,970 62,958 70,280 41,580 (39.431) (105,802) 102,209
BB BERFEEHY ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-
i CONTROLLING INTERESTS:
BEE TOTAL ASSETS 10962126 11,412,151 8,904,160 7771,610 4,405,092 3,152,524 2,793,151 2,883,828 2,146,237 2,032,843 2,185,873
#ERE TOTAL LIABILITIES (7900,809)  (9.234813) (69733020  (5,906460)  (3221,400)  (2,148493)  (1,806,194)  (2,061,376)  (1,380,096) (1,202,849  (1,225,574)
FEHtER NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (6,639) 6,758) 5,394) (8,660) 4,476) - - - - - -
KR&s SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 3,054,588 2,170,580 1,925,464 1,856,490 1,179,216 1,004,031 986,957 822,452 766,141 829,994 960,299
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